
 
 

Council 
Town Hall 
Wallasey 

 
5 July, 2013 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Council to 
be held at 6.15 pm on Monday, 15 July 2013 in the Council 
Chamber, within the Town Hall, Wallasey, to take into 
consideration and determine upon the following subjects :  
 
 
Contact Officer: Andrew Mossop 
Tel: 0151 691 8501 
e-mail: andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members of the Council are asked to consider whether they have any 

disclosable pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest, in 
connection with any matter to be debated or determined at this 
meeting and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of such interest. 
 

2. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
 To receive the Mayor's announcements and any apologies for 

absence. 
 

3. PETITIONS  
 
 To receive petitions submitted in accordance with Standing Order 21. 

 
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 
 To deal with questions from members of the public, in accordance with 

Appendix 1 to Standing Orders. 
 

5. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 36) 
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Annual 

Public Document Pack



Council held on 13 May and reconvened on 20 May, 2013. 
 

6. LEADER'S, EXECUTIVE MEMBERS' AND CHAIRS' REPORTS 
(Pages 37 - 62) 

 
 To receive the written reports of the Leader and Cabinet Members and 

receive questions and answers on any of those reports in accordance 
with Standing Orders 10(2)(a) and 11. 
 
(There is no report from the Chair of the Policy and Performance 
Coordinating Committee as not all the Policy and Performance 
Committees have met). 
 

7. MATTERS REQUIRING APPROVAL BY THE COUNCIL (Pages 63 - 
82) 

 
 To consider any recommendations of the Leader, Cabinet, Cabinet 

Member and Committees which require the approval of the Council. 
The relevant minutes are attached; copies of the related reports can 
be provided for Council members on request. 
 
A. Cabinet – 13 June, 2013  
 

Minute 7 
Policy on Discharge of Statutory Homelessness Duty into the 
Private Rented Sector (Pages 63 – 64) 

 
B. Cabinet Member – Economy (Decision published on 18 June, 
2013)  

 
Local Development Framework - Joint Waste Local Plan for 
Merseyside and Halton (Pages 65 – 66) 
 

C. Any matter which might be referred to Council by Cabinet at 
its meeting on 11 July, 2013, including – 

 
Corporate Plan Performance Management Report 
(Report attached) (Pages 67 – 76) 
 

D. To consider a recommendation from the Leader of the Council 
(made under his strong Leader powers) on the following 
matter: 

 
Appointment of the Council’s Section 151 Officer  
(Leader’s recommendation and report attached) (Pages 77 – 82) 

 
8. MATTERS FOR NOTING (Pages 83 - 84) 
 
 The following matter, determined by the Cabinet, is drawn to the 

Council’s attention in accordance with the Constitution (copies of the 
related report can be provided for Council members on request). 
 
 



Cabinet – 13 June 2013  
Minute 17 – Financial Monitoring 2013/14 
 

9. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  
 
 To consider Members’ general questions to the Mayor, Cabinet 

Member or Committee Chair in accordance with Standing Orders 10 
(2)(b) and 11. 
 

10. MATTERS REFERRED FROM POLICY AND PERFORMANCE 
COMMITTEES  

 
 To consider and determine any references from the Policy and 

Performance Committees. 
 

11. NOTICES OF MOTION (Pages 85 - 90) 
 
 Notices of motion submitted in accordance with Standing Order 7(1), 

are attached. They are listed in the order received, and the full text of 
each motion is attached. The Mayor, having considered each motion, 
in accordance with Standing Order 7(4) has decided that they will be 
dealt with as follows: 
 
(i) Whistle-blowing (To be debated) 
(ii) Local Investment in Rail - High Speed2 & Borderlands 

Railway (Mayor to refer to the Leader of the Council)  
(iii) Comprehensive Spending Review Announcement – 27th 

June 2013 (To be debated)  
(iv) Cuts to Merseyside Fire And Rescue Service (Mayor to refer 

to  the Regeneration and Environment Policy and Performance 
Committee) 

 
12. VACANCIES  
 
 To receive nominations, in accordance with Standing Order 25(6), in 

respect of any proposed changes in the membership of committees, 
and to approve nominations for appointments to outside organisations. 
 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
 To consider any other items of business that the Mayor accepts as 

being urgent. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Head of Legal and Member Services 



This page is intentionally left blank



��������
�

��������	
������������	�������������������	���	����������������������	�������	��
�	�����������������

�
�������������

�
�	
�������������� ������	����	������	�������� ����!�������������

"�#������	����	������	��"�����������!�
�
� �	������	��� $%��&&���

��'�(�����
 �'	����
��'����	����
��'�����)	���
*����)�����
���	+�
,���&�����
��"�����
��"�����
*,�"�����
��"	������
"� �����	��
-�.	��(���
%�.�����
������������
�����)��
, �������
$������	��
��/�(����
,�/���
�

��/�����
��/����
��/	��	��
0�/	��	��
��/	��&��
��,	����	��
� $�,	����
��,	����
��0������
-�0�����
'�0�����
��%�����
1�%�2���
�$���%�����
����%�������
��������
'��		����
-��	�������
�����#����
-�3�&�	�(�
��3	�&����
�

���	����
"�$�����
%�$������
"�$	&�����
%�$	2�����
,�-�����
/�-)����
��-)����
*�-)����
,�-�#���	��
��-�������
��-�(���
��*���
-�*��������)�
,�*����)�	��
1�*����)��
0,�*����)��
��*����)��
-�*����)��
�

�#	�	����� �	������	��� "�"	���
-�/	������
�

,�*����
�

�	
�������������� ������	����	������	��"�����������!�������������
"�#������	����	������	��-�����.	��(��!�

�
� �	������	��� $%��&&����

��'�(�����
 �'	����
��'����	����
��'�����)	���
*����)�����
,���&�����
��"�����
��"�����
*,�"�����
"�"	���
��"	������
"� �����	��

��/������
��/����
��/	��	��
0�/	��	��
��/	��&��
��,	����	��
� $�,	����
��,	����
��0������
-�0�����
'�0�����
��%�����
�$���%�����

���	�����
"�$�����
%�$������
"�$	&�����
%�$	2�����
,�-�����
/�-)����
��-)����
*�-)����
,�-�#���	��
��-�������
��-�(���
,�*����

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 5

Page 1



�� �����
������������
�����)��
, �������
$������	��
��/�(����
,�/���
�

����%�������
��������
'��		����
-��	�������
�����#����
-�3�&�	�(�
��3	�&����
�

��*���
-�*��������)�
,�*����)�	��
1�*����)��
0,�*����)��
��*����)��
-�*����)��
�

�#	�	����� �	������	��� ���	+��
%�.�����
�

-�/	�������
1�%�2���
�

�� ��������������������������
�
���� ��)&���� 	
� ���� �	������ 2���� �������� �	� �	������� 2������� ����� ��� ���
�����	�&��� #�������� ��4	�� ��� 	����� �������� ��������� ��� �	������	�� 2���� ���
)�������	�&�������)������������)������������
��	���	�����������������������������
	
��������������5�3	�������������	���2����)��5�
�

�� ������������������������
�
������	�����(��������	���2�����������	������������	���	�������'	�	����2�	����
��##	����� ��)� ��� ���� ��	����� ��� ���� 2���� ������� 	
� ���������� ���� ����� ���
������(������	���	�����������	
�	

���5�1��#���������������	�����(�������%�����
	
� �����	������������	�#���� ����%�����	
� �����	������ 
	�� ��������##	��6������	�
�+#������� �#����� ���(�� �	� ���� ��

� 	
� ������ ��� ��)&��� -�������� ��� ����
���������� 
	�� ������ ������ ���������� ��� ��� ��	��� ���	����� ��� ���� 2	�(� 	
� ����
��	�7��������� .���5�/�� ������ �	2�����
���� ��)&��� ��� #�	��� &	������ ��� ����
��	�����2�����	����������������	�������	����5��
��
���������8�����	
�������	���*����9��:	�����	���%�������;�����'������������
#	�)��	)#	����
	������	����	�5�
�

�� ���������������������������
�
������	�� �������� �	)����	��� 
	�� ������	�� 	
� ������	�� 
	�� ���� ��������)�����#��
���5�
��
<���)	��	��)	����&���	������	����������������	�����&���	������	����"������������
����&������	
����	������	)����	�������2���
��
���	� ��� !"
�
#$	"��%� &� �'�(��	"
)#��	*��� ���#()'���� +�� ���)(�����	*�	,�
('����(*	-	�#(�
�.	*	"/'�	,�0#**���,	*�('����������$"
#)#-�����*1�
��
�	������	�����������)��������������	��	
����#�����	
�	

������8������&���2�����
���� �����������	�� ��	������	�� ����!� ������ ��������5��	������	����������� 	���#����
��������5�
��
������	�7����#�����$���'������	����� ����� ���� �����	������ ���#�����
����2�����
������	��2���	)������������������#	(���	�����������	�5�
�
�
�

Page 2



=� ��2�������������������
�
���� ��	�� �������� �	)����	��� 
	�� ���� ##	���)���� 	
� � "�#���� ��	�� 
	�� ����
��������)�����#�����5�
�
<���)	��	��)	����&���	������	�������"���������	�����&���	������	����������������
�������&������	
����	������	)����	�������2���
��
���	� ���!��34%�!�5��+�(�
(#	
�%�&��'�(��	"
)#��	*��(� ���	"�6���+���--	#
(���
��-"(���	*�	,�('����(*	-	�#(�
�.	*	"/'�	,�0#**���,	*�('����������$"
#)#-���
��*1�
��
�	������	��.	��(���)��������������	��	
����#�����	
�	

������8������&���25�
�

>� ��7����������
�
���� �	������ ������� 2���	��� � �	���� #������� �	� -������� <����� >�� ��!�� ���� ����
)�������������?	�������	�@5�>#)�	���	���������������5�
�

@� ��������������������������
�
������)&����	
������	������2�������������	��	�������2����������������#���	���	��
#��?��������������������	������	��2�������)������	�&����&����	�������)������������
)������� ���� �
� �	�� �	� ������� ��� ��� ����� ���� ������ 	
� ����� ��������5� 3	� �����
�������	���2����)��5�
�

A� ������������������������
�
���� ��	�� ��
������ �	� ���� /	)��	)���� ����� 
	�� ���� ������� $���)���� 2�����
2	�����(��#����	��*�����������,������������������2�	�2����&����	�?	�����)�
	��
���������5�/����	���
�������	���)���.	�����"��	��-�������B�,���������������
�����	����	����	�'��(��������(��	�����&������������2�����#�����5�
�

C� 2����������
�
1����	������2����-�������<���������������	�����������#�����	�����&)������&��D�
��
��!� �	������	�� 0������ /	��	�� 	�� &���
� 	
� �=�� �����	����� 	&?������� �	� ����

'�	2��'���������2�����	������	�������5�
�

���!� �	������	��'����0�����	��&���
�	
���>�������	�������8�����������+�����	��
�	��������	�	��.����E	������'��(�����5�

�
���	� ���&��'�(�('��-�(#(#	
��+��
	(����
��*�,�**���(	�('���--*	-*#�(���'#�,�
�,,#)�*�#
��))	*��
)��8#('��(�
�#
/��*��*���1�
�

B� ���������
�
����)�������	
�����)��������	
������	�����������	������#������������&��������������
�	���)&�����������2��D�
��
���	� ���&��'�(�('��$#
"(���+���--*	 ����
����	-(��������)	**�)(�*�)	*�1�

Page 3



�
��� ����������9�����:��22��;���.���<�����������

�
���� �	������ 2�� ��8������� �	� �	������� ���� ��#	���� 	
� ���� -�������� "�����	�� 	
�
����
	�)��	�����$��	������	������
	��	2����)������D�
��
��!� �##	���)����� �	� �	������ �	))������� ��� ���� �##	���)���� 	
� ������ ���

F���G�������	�������	))������5�
�

���!� �##	���)����� �	� -����	��� ��� �����	��� �	))��������*	�(���� ������� ���
�����5�

�
����!� �##	���)���� 	
� ��)&���� ���4	�� 	����� ����������!� �	� <������� '	����� ���

<�������	��5�
�
���!� $�����	����	������	))�������������
	������������#��:�������4�=5�
�
�����	������2����	� ��8������� �	��	�����������	))�����	�� 
�	)� ����%�����	
�
���� �	������ 	�� ���� $	��� ��� $��#	���&�������� 	
� ���� �	����� ��� ���
	�)����
�	))�����������5�
�
<�� �)	��	�� &���	������	�������"������ ���	����� &���	������	��������%������ ���
2��G�
�
���	� ���!"
�
#$	"��%�&��
�
!�%��'�(� ,	*� ('����������$"
#)#-�����*� ('�� (	(���
"$+�*�	,��	$$#((���-��)���
!�=)�"�#
/� ('	��� 	
� ('����+#
�(� �
���	
�(#("�
)��	$$#((���%� �'���� +�� ����
�
��('��-��)����'����+�����	)�(���#
�('��,	��	8#
/�-*	-	*(#	
�3�
��
�	$$#((���
��

2��)���
��

�	
��* �(# ��
��

��+	"*�
��

�#+�*���
��$1�

��
�1�

�"�#(��
���#�6�
��
�/�$�
(� >� �� 4� �� �

�$-�	$�
(��
��
�--	#
($�
(�� ?� �� 4� �� �

�#)�
�#
/��)(������
�	$$#((��� �4� 4� ?� �� �

�#)�
�#
/@�<���('��
��
��,�(��
��:2� >� �� 4� �� �

2�
�#	
�� ��� �� A� �� �
2��

#
/� ��� 4� 5� �� �
�(�
��*����
��
�	
�(#("(#	
���
� �*�#/'(�

>� �� 4� ��
�

�		*�#
�(#
/�
�	$$#((���2�B�2�� �4� 4� >� �� �

��$#�#����
��
0���+�#
/�2�B�2� �4� 4� >� �� �

��/�
�*�(#	
��
��
�
 #*	
$�
(�2�B�2� �4� 4� ?� �� ��

Page 4



�*�
�,	*$�(#	
��
��
���	"*)���2�B�2� �4� 4� ?� �� ��

��	(��� ���� ��� 54� ��� ��
�
!�%��'�(� ('���'�#*��	,� ('���+	 ���	$$#((����+�����	)�(������ ,	��	8��8#('� ('��
��+	"*�:*	"-�+�#
/����	)�(���('��;#)�C�'�#*��	,���)'3�
��
�(�
��*����
���	
�(#("(#	
���� �*�#/'(� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
�"�#(��
���#�6���
�/�$�
(� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
�$-�	$�
(��
���--	#
($�
(�� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
�#)�
�#
/��)(�������	$$#((��� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
�#)�
�#
/@�<���('��
����,�(��
��:2� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
2�
�#	
�� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
2��

#
/� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
�		*�#
�(#
/��	$$#((���2�B�2� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
��$#�#����
��0���+�#
/�2�B�2� �	
��* �(# ��:*	"-�
��/�
�*�(#	
��
���
 #*	
$�
(�2�B�2� �#+�*�����$	)*�(�:*	"-�
�*�
�,	*$�(#	
��
�����	"*)���2�B�2� ��+	"*�:*	"-�
��
!�%�� �'�(� ('�� 
	$#
�(#	
�� ,	*� -��)��� 	
� )	$$#((���� +�� �"+$#((��� +� ('��
*��-�)(# ��2	�#(#)���:*	"-������*��(	�('��<����	,���/����
����$+�*���* #)���
�
��+�������(�	"(�#
��--�
�#=���(	�('��$#
"(���	,�('#��$��(#
/1�
��
!�%�� �'�(� ('�� 	
/	#
/� 
	$#
�(#	
�� 	,� �#	)���
� �
�� 2�*�
(� :	 �*
	*�
*�-*���
(�(# ��� 	
� ('�� ��$#�#��� �
�� 0���+�#
/� 2	�#)� �
�� 2�*,	*$�
)��
�	$$#((���+��
	(��1�
��
!4%�� �'�(� ('�� 
"$+�*�� +�� �/*���� ,	*� ��)'� �--	#
($�
(�� (	� �(�("(	*� �
��
�� #�	*��	$$#((���@�0	*6#
/�2�*(#����
��2�
����,	*�('������������$"
#)#-���
��*@� #
)�"�#
/� ('��-*	-	*(#	
����-�#(�8'�*���--*	-*#�(�@��
�� ('��
	$#
�(#	
��
+�� �"+$#((���+� ('�� *��-�)(# ��2	�#(#)���:*	"-������*�� (	� ('��<����	,� ��/���
�
����$+�*���* #)����
��+�������(�	"(� #
��--�
�#=�.�(	�('��$#
"(���	,� ('#��
$��(#
/1�
��
!A%�� �'�(� ('�� 
"$+�*�� +�� �/*���� ,	*� ��)'� �--	#
($�
(� 	,� ��$+�*�� !�
��	*�
	('�*� #
�# #�"���%� (	� ���� �"(�#��� .	�#��� ,	*� ('�� ���������� $"
#)#-��� ��*@�
#
)�"�#
/� ('�� -*	-	*(#	
��� �-�#(@� 8'�*�� �--*	-*#�(�@� �
�� ('�� 
	$#
�(#	
�� +��
�"+$#((��� +� ('�� *��-�)(# �� 2	�#(#)��� :*	"-� �����*�� !�
�� �'#�,� �=�)"(# �� #
�
*��-�)(� 	,� �	"
)#�� �,,#)�*� 
	$#
�(#	
�%� (	� ('�� <���� 	,� ��/��� �
�� ��$+�*�
��* #)����
��+�������(�	"(�#
��--�
�#=���(	�('��$#
"(���	,�('#��$��(#
/1�
�
!5%� �'�(� ('�� *� #���� �	$$#((��� )���
��*� ,	*� ���������@� ��� ��(� 	"(� #
� ('��
�"--��$�
(�(	�('���	"
)#���"$$	
�@�+���/*���1�
�
!?%��'�(�('��*	������)*#-(#	
�,	*�2	�#)��
��2�*,	*$�
)���	$$#((����'�#*�����
��(� 	"(� #
� �--�
�#=� �� (	� ('�� �#*�)(	*� 	,� 2"+�#)� <���('� �� <���� 	,� 2	�#)� �
��
2�*,	*$�
)�D��*�-	*(@�+���/*���1�
�
�
�
�

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



� � � � � � � � � �����������

	�	
�����������		����������������� �
�
�������������		�������
�
���������������	�����	������		������
����� !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
����!)&(+,-#+&.��
�
��������	�
���
��������
���������������
�

�
������������	��
�	��	���	���	�
�	�����������
�	�������	��
�	����	�� ����
��	!	� ��������
"�������	��
�	�����		��
�

/��,'� (.�
�
�����#��		�
�������
��$##	��
%�&	'�������
������(	��
�� �����
�� �����������

�
"����)��*�����	�
"�+��*����
"���������
$������		&��
������	��
�������!���
�� ������*����
,� ��������
�

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
��������	����
���
�

�
$����)��*����	�
"�������&������
�������	��
"��� ��������
�

�
�
�

Minute Annex

Page 7Page 7



� � � � � � � � � �����������

�	����	���������������	�������		������
�0��� !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
����!)&(+,-#+&.�
�
�	�����		��
���
�	��	���	���	�
�

�
"	�	���	���	��
$���	���������
"�������	��
��������	�
�	����	�� ����
 	������	�	����
������������	��
������)��(	�	��
�

/��,'� (.�
�
"����+��*����
�������
"����+�!�	��
%�&	'�������
�	��*	�+�!�	��
$���������	��
$����&��&�����
�
�

�
��	!	�����(	��
)������	����
���������	��
�������	��	��
+	���	���#	����
"�����&(	���
������������
����������
�

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
"�������&������
���
�

�
$����)��*����	�
�������	��
��������	����
"��� ��������

�
�
�

Page 8Page 8



� � � � � � � � � �����������

���������1������2���3�������������������������
��		������
����� !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
����!)&(+,-#+&.�
�
,����	����
���
������)��(	�	��
�	����	�� ����
�

�
��(	�����#��
��	����"�!����
$������(	��
��	!	� ��������
"�������	��
��������	�
"	�	���	���	��
 	������	�	����
�

/��,'� (.�
�
)����+�!�	��
��������
��	!	�-�#��&(�
%�&	'�������
"�����������
���������	��
,�	�	� ��������

�
�������#��		�
�	��*	�+�!�	��
���!��������	��
�������������.�����
$������		&��
+	���	���#	����
�	������.�	����
��(	������!���
�

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
"��� ��������
���
�

�
$����)��*����	�
"�������&������
�������	��
��������	����
�

�
�
�

Page 9Page 9



� � � � � � � � � �����������

���������������������		������
��/��� !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
����
�

���������
-��.��!�����������	.���	��

/���!)&(+,-#+&.�
�
/���	�)�����
�	����/�����
$���	���������
��(	�����#��
,����	����
�

�

0��,'� (.�
�
)����+�!�	��
�������
��	!	�-�#��&(�
%�&	'�������
�	��*	�+�!�	��
����-��#����
+	���	���#	����
���������	��
�������������
��(	������!���
�

�

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
�������	��
"��� ��������
�

�

�
�

Page 10Page 10



� � � � � � � � � �����������

�����������		������
������ !"#$�%&%'&()4�/�"�5�6-&7�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
����!)&(+,-#+&.�
�
�	����	�� ����
���
��(	�����#��
��	����"�!����
�

�
$������(	��
���������������
��������	�
/���	�)�����
�	�����������
������������	��
"�������	��
��	!	� ��������
�

8��,'� (.��
�
"�����������
�������
$����&��&�����
%�&	'�������
�	��*	�+�!�	��
���!��������	��
$���������	��
������������
�

�
�������#��		�
��#���	*����
)������	����
�������&���*�����
)	���	�����	��
+	���	���#	����
�	������.�	����
������� ������*����
�

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
�������	��
���
�

�
$����)��*����	�
"�������&������
��������	����
"��� ���������
�

/���5�6-&7�%&%'&().�
�
�	������		����0�

•� ��!	�.�������������&�����
•� ������	���)���
•� ����	�	����)���
•� �	������)��

�����
�	.�	�	�����!	�������	��"	�����������	�.���	���

"����&(��&��������
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

Page 11Page 11



� � � � � � � � � �����������

�����������		������
������ !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
/���!)&(+,-#+&.�
�
+�!���/��	�����
���
/���	�)�����
 	������	�	����
"�������	��
������������	��
�

�
���������������
��������
�	����	�� ����
�	�����������
��	����"�!����
�	��	���	���	�
������)��(	�	��
��(	������#��
��

9��,'� (.�
�
)	���	�����	��
�������
+	���	��	��	��
%�&	'�������
"����)��*�����	�
��	!	�����(	��
$������		&��
��	� �����
,�	�	� ���������

�
�������#��		�
)������	����
��#���	*����
"�����������
�������������.�����
����-��#����
+	���	���#	����
������� ������*����
�

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
��������	����
���
�

�
$����)��*����	�
"�������&������
�������	��
"��� ���������
�

�
�

Page 12Page 12



� � � � � � � � � �����������

������������������������������:���������		������
����� !"#$�%&%'&()4���#!7&6&!7&!-�6&()�!)*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
����!)&(+,-#+&.�
�
�	�������	��
���
�	����/�����
"	�	���	���	��
�

�
������)��(	�	��
�	�����������
��	!	� ��������
"�������	��
������������	��
��������	�
$���	���������
��(	�����#��
�

/��,'� (.�
�
)����+�!�	��
�������
�������&���*�����
%�&	'�������
����$##	��
+	���	���#	����
���������	��
�

�
�������#��		�
��	!	�����(	��
"�����������
���������	��
$������		&��
�������	��	��
)	���	�����	��
��	!	�-�#��&(�
�

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
�������	��
���
�
�

�
$����)��*����	�
"�������&������
��������	����
"��� ��������
�

���!7&6&!7&!-�6&()�!).�
�
"���	������������	���
�..����	��������12�����3�4516��
��������	�����������������
�..����	��������12�����3�4516��
���+�)��*	��'���&	��
�..����	��������12�����3�4516��
���)�������*����������
�..����	��������12�����3�4516��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 13Page 13



� � � � � � � � � �����������

��������������3��	�������		�������
�
���������������		������
��/��� !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
/���!)&(+,-#+&.�
�
$���	���������
���
+�!���/��	�����
�	�������	��
$������(	��
��	!	� ��������
�
�

�
������������	��
�	�����������
 	������	�	����
��	����"�!����
��������	�
��(	�����#��
�	����/�����
�	��	���	���	�
�

���,'� (.��
�
������� ������*����
�������
��	!	�����(	��
%�&	'�������
����$##	��
"����+��*����
"�����������
�������&���*�����
)	���	�����	��
+	���	���#	����
�	������.�	����
�

�
�
�������#��		�
$������		&��
��#���	*�����
+	���	��	��	��
���������	��
 ���	��������
,�	�	� ��������
�	���� ��������

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
$����)��*����	�
���
�
�
�
�

�
"�������&������
�������	��
��������	����
"��� ��������

�
�

Page 14Page 14



� � � � � � � � � �����������

3�	����������;���
�����
��/��� !"#$�%&%'&()4����"�5�6-&7�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
���� ���������
� �
/���!)&(+,-#+&.��
�
 	������	�	����
�������
"�������	��
��(	�����#��
������������	��
��	����"�!����
�

�
"	�	���	���	��
��	!	� ��������
�	����	�� ����
�	�����������
�	�����		��
$������(	��
��������
�	��	���	���	�
�

���,'� (.��
�
�������&���*�����
%�&	'�������
"����)��*�����	�
)	���	�����	��
��	!	�-�#��&(�
����-��#����
+	���	���#	����
 ���	��������
�	������.�	����
���	��	� ����������
�

�
�
����$##	��
"����+��*����
"�����������
���!��������	��
+	���	��	��	��
���������	��
��	� �����
,�	�	� ��������

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.��
�
"��� ��������
���
�
�
�

�
$����)��*����	�
"�������&������
�������	��
��������	����

��5�6-&7�%&%'&()�����*.�
���#�"&),!�(&6(&)&!-,-#+&)�
�����!����*���*����0�
�������������&�7����$�	���&����
����&�����/�*�����7�:,",!"<�
�
���,(&!-���+&(!�(�(&6(&)&!-,-#+&)�
�����!����*���*����0�
���������	#���*	�
������48�9&��#	��4512��
����-�&����������
������8��	#������451:��
�
��(&6(&)&!-,-#+&����-=&�:�$ !-,(<�,!7���%% !#-<�
)&"-�().�
�������	�9�	���
�
/���5�6-&7�%&%'&()��;
*.�
������� ����'�9��	��"	�.�	;��"������	����
+���	������7��	�������&�� ������
%�&��&��'��	�!�&	�<�	���
%�&��&��'����	���
����������*���'�)�/�����������
�

�

�

Page 15Page 15



� � � � � � � � � �����������

�
�������������������:����	����
��/��� !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
����
�

���������
�

/���!)&(+,-#+&�
�
��	!	� ��������
���
/���	�)�����
�	����/�����
���������������
"	�	���	���	��
�
�
�

�
$���	���������
$������(	��
�	�����������
������������	��
+�!���/��	�����
��������	�
�	��	���	���	�
�	�����		��

0��,'� (.��
�
��	!	�����(	��
%�&	'�������
�������#��		�
"����+��*����
��#���	*����
$������		&��
+	���	��	��	��
��(	������!���
�	���� ��������
�

�
�
"����)��*�����	�
)	���	�����	��
�������������.�����
����-��#����
��	!	�-�#��&(�
��	� �����
���������	��
,�	�	� ��������

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-.�
�
$����)��*����	�
�������
�
�
�
�

�
"�������&������
�������	��
��������	����
"��� ��������

���!7&6&!7&!-.�
�
���(����������
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

Page 16Page 16



� � � � � � � � � �����������

�����3��	��������������������
��/��� !"#$�%&%'&()*�
�
	�	
����
�

���������
�

/���!)&(+,-#+&.��
�
$���	���������
���
������)��(	�	��
��������	�
�	�����������
$������(	��
�
�

�
 	������	�	����
������������	��
��	����"�!����
"�������	��
���������������
"	�	���	���	��
��	!	� ��������

0��,'� (.��
�
������� ������*����
�������
����$##	��
%�&	'�������
"�����������
��#���	*����
���!��������	��
�������������.�����
���������	��
���	��	� ����������
�

�
�
"����)��*�����	�
�������#��		�
$������		&��
)	���	�����	��
+	���	��	��	��
+	���	���#	����
��(	������!���
�	���� ��������

���#'&(,$��&%�"(,-0��
�
"�������&������
���
�
�
�
�

�
$����)��*����	�
�������	��
��������	����
"��� ��������

���!7&6&!7&!-.�
�
���(����������
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

Page 17Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



� � ���������	�

�

�������� ���� ����
��� ��������
�� �������
������
����������
������	��
��������������
�
� !"��������	��
�������	��
������������������������������������������
	����������
�������� ���������� �	����	�� �
�����	� ������ 	����	���	�
��  ���������
���������	�	��������������
�������������
������������
������������
����	������
��� �����
���� !���� 
�� ��
�����	� ����
�� ����
	��� "���	���� ���������	� ���
!����
��������	�
����
���������������
�����
�
�
#�$� 
����������������
����������
�

���	�����
����������
�������������
�
#%$� ������
�����������
�
�&'()%*+"�,* -��.%*/&%0')&1�23��&**%4�� .0(&4�.0/"*�!)"��"0!%4��"%4!)�
�(!��56���%0"4��#�$�%��
�&�����	� �����
���� ����� ������	���� ��� ���� '����� �
�� '�������
��
(������	��
��)������
�������������
�
���
������'���*��	��
�
���
������&�����&�������
�
���
������ ���
�&��
�
���
�
#2$� �������������7������
������
�
�
#&$8� � -14%&0!'��%0"4�#
()  4��.**&(.4.-�%0/��"4%!"/��%!!"*'$�

�#�$�%����	�
������������	��
�
���
�����	�+�
�� ����� �������	�,����
�����	��'������������

-������������ � )������ �����
� � .��
���&��
���
�
���
������)�
��������
�	� �������	�,����
�����	��'����/���	�
� � �������'������
� � �
#&&$8� �/.(%!& 0�
!%,,��%0"4��0�#�$����	�
������������	��
�
���
�����	� '������������ �������	�,����
�����	� ����	�&����
�
� +�
�� ����� � �����
������
� )������ ����� � �
� .��
���&��
���
�
���
�����	� )�
��������
�	� �������,�������
������ '����/���	�
� �������'������ � �
� �
���
������ '���)������	� �������	�,����
�����	� "��
�.������	��
� � � +���/��
���
�
�

Page 19Page 19



� � ���������	�

#&&&$8� �"%/!"%()"*��11 &0!-"0!'��%0"4�
�1�$�%����	�
������������	��
�

���
�����	� .��
���&��
��� �������	�,����
�����	� -������������
� )������ ����� � -�
�����)������	�
�
� +�
�� �����
�
���
������ )�
��������
�	� �������,�������
������ �������'������
� �
#&9$8� 
()  4��11"%4'��%0"4�
�
���������	��&�	�"�.�������&��2�-�
�	��&�	� �2��
���	��&��-� ������!������
&���� ��
����&�	�-�+��
����&�	�/�"�)���	��
��&�	�/�)��	��
�
#9$8� 
!%0/&0+��/9&' *3�� --&!!""� 0��"4&+& .'��/.(%!& 0�#
����$�

�0�#�%��
�
���
�����	� +�
�� ����� �������	�,����
�����	� '�����.����������
� )������ ����� � -������������
� .��
���&��
��� � ��
�	��2�����	�
� &�����&�������
�� �
�
���
�����	� )�
��������
�	� �������,�������
������ '����/���	�
� '�����3���
���
�
#9&$8� �&**%4�
()  4'�7 *.-�#7.0/&0+�� 0'.4!%!&9"��* .1$�

4�	�����	��#�$�%��
�
���
������.��
���&��
����
���
������+�
�� �����
���
������)�
��������
�	�
�
#9&&$8��&**%4��)&4/*"0:'��*.'!�	 %*/��#�$�%��
�
����
���&������,����
������+�
�� �����
�
�����
�����	�����	�&����
��
��)�
��������
�	�
�
#9&&&$8��/ 1!& 0���7 '!"*&0+��%0"4'�
�
"������
�����
������+�
�� �������������
(�	����
������
�����	�"
�����������������'�������
��+���/��
���
�
#($� ������������
������
������
�
�
�0/"1"0/"0!��"-.0"*%!& 0��%0"4� �0����	�
	�!�������
���������	���� ����
���
����
��!�������
�����	5�����������������
������������
�
��
�����������������2���"���
��6�
7���.��������'����
��.��!
�
�
�
�

Page 20Page 20



� � ���������	�

#/$� ���������������	�����
�
�"%4!)�%0/��"442"&0+�	 %*/�
�(���� $� "������ #%$1� ���� .����� �	� 
�� ��
���� �
� 	����!� ����� �
�� �	� 
�!� ��
	����������������������������
����
�
1�'��������*�����������	����	���	��8�����	����������
���&�����	�����"�����
 ��������������
����������	�-�
�	���������
��
��(������ �����	�����
������
+�
�� �������
��/�������
��)������
������
����������	�&����
��
�
#"$� �����	����
����
�������������������
�
#&$8� � .'&0+��"9&";��%0"4��#�$�%����	�
������������	��
�
���
�����	� *�����������	� �������	�,����
�����	� &���� ������
�
� "
��������� � ��
�	��2������
� � � ����	�-�
�	�
�
���
������ "
���!�/��	�
� �������	�,����
�����	� �����(��	���
� � � +�
����9�
�
#&&$8� �0&,&"/��%&!&0+��&'!��%0%+"-"0!��/9&' *3�	 %*/�

�1�#�%����	�
������������	��
�
���
�����	� *�����������	� �������	�,����
�����	� &���� ������
�
� "
��������� � .���������	�
� ��
�	��2������ �  �����6������
�
���
�����	� "
���!�/��	�
� �������,��������
������ ������:������
�
� ����	�.�������� � &����/��
���
�
#�$� ����
�����������
������������������
�

���	�����
����������
�������������
�
#%$� �������������7������
������
�
�
#&$8� � .!)�%0/��4%3�
"*9&("��/9&' *3�� --&!!""�

�;����
���&�����	�8�1�1�#��
�
���
�����	� +�
�� ����� �������,������
������ -��
� �������
�
� ����	�&����
�
� )������ �����
�
���
�����	� '����/���	� �������,����<��
��
� )�
��������
�	�
� �������'������
�
���
�����	� +���/��
��� �������	�,����
������ '����*�����	��
� '���)������	� � �
�
�

Page 21Page 21



� � ���������	�

#&&$8� � *1 *%!"� �%*"0!&0+� �* .1� ���������� �
�!
� �	� <�������  �����
*����
�
��.������#�#�#��

�
���
�����	�����	�&����
��+�
�� �����
���
�����	��������'�������)�
��������
�	�
���
�����	�+���/��
����'���)������	�
�
#&&&$8� �"%/!"%()"*'�%0/��"%()"*'�< &0!�� 0'.4!%!&9"�� --&!!""�

�=����
���&�����	�8�1�#�#��
�
���
�����	� ��
�	��2�����	� �������	�,����
�����	� -������������
� +�
�� ����� � &�����&�������
�
� *�����������	� � .��
���&��
���
�
���
�����	� )�
��������
�	� �������,����
������ �������'������
� '����/���	�
�
���
�����	� +���/��
��� �������	�,����
�����	� "��
�.������	��
� '���)������	� � '����*�����	��
�
#&9$8� �&**%4�
()  4'=��.'&(�
"*9&("�� 0'.4!%!&9"�� --&!!""�

�$�$�$��
�
���
������)������ �����
���
������)�
��������
�	�
���
������'���)������	�
�
#2$� ������
�
#&$8� 	&*>"0)"%/�� ;0��"0!*"�� 0'.4!%!&9"��* .1��#�#�$��
�
���
�����	�.���
�3�

���-��
� �������
�
���
�����	�"
���!�/��	�
�� ���
�&��
�
���
���
������ ������3�����
�
#&&$8� �&**%4��*%/"��"0!*"�� *>&0+��%*!3��$�$�$��
2������
�� ��� ���� '����� �
�� '�������
�� 2���
������
� �
�� :
����
��
��
����������
�
1�'��������*�����������	����������
���
��	���
�
#($� ���������������
�
�����	������
�
�&**%4��4&-%!"��)%0+"��* .1��$�$�$��
�
���
������.���
�3�

��
���
������'�����3���
���
���
������"��
�.������	��
�
�
�

Page 22Page 22



� � ���������	�

#/$� �������������������������
�
#&$8� �"-2"*'=��*%&0&0+�
!""*&0+��* .1��#�#�#���
�
���
�����	�"

�&�����
����������
��'���*��	��
�
���
�����	�)�
��������
�	��
��&����/��
���
���
�����	�+���/��
����
��'����*�����	��
�
#&&$8� �"-2"*'=��?.&1-"0!�
!""*&0+��* .1��#�#�#���
�
���
�����	� ������)�����
������
��"

�&�����
�
���
�����	�-����*���
��
�� �����)������	�
���
�����	�+���/��
����
��"��
�.������	��
�
#"$� ���������������	�����
�
#&$8� 	&*>"0)"%/��%*>��/9&' *3�� --&!!""��0�#�#��
�
���
�����	�.���
�3�

���*�����������	����
�	��2�����	��-��
� �������
�
���
�����	��������'�������������:������
�
���
�����	� ������3������"��
�.������	��
�
#&&$8� �&42*"��'4%0/��%!.*"��"'"*9"��%0%+"-"0!�� --&!!""�

�#�0�#��
�
���
�����	�-�����)������	��+�
�� �����
���
�����	�*�����:���	��-��
�/�����-����*���
��*��������)����
���
�����	�"��
�.������	���
���%(%0(3�
�
#,$� �����	����
����
�������������������
�
�0!&@
 (&%4�	")%9& .*��%*!0"*')&1�	 /3��#�#�$��
�
���
�����	� *�����������	� �������,�������
��������/����� ������
� -���)��	��
�
���
�����	� -��
�/���� �������,�������
������ "
���!�/��	�
�
�  �����)������	�
�
���
������ '����*�����	�� �������	�,����
�����	�  ������3�����
�
#+$� �������������7������
������
��

������
����������
�

%,"+.%*/&0+��","*"0("��* .1��0�1�#��
�
���
�����	�*�����������	��'���������	��+�
�� ����������	�-�
�	�
���
�����	�-����*���
����	����2�

����)�
��������
�	�
���
�����	�+���/��
����'���)������	�

Page 23Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



� � ���������	�
�
���
���������
�
�������
��������������
������������������� �!"�����	�##"����$�
�
����%������������	
�������	�����������
��������������
��	�����������������	������
���	�����	����������	�
��������������������������	������
�
�
��$� ���&��
	��&�	�'��
�
�"$(� �����)�
�
�	������	������
��	��
�
�
�""$(� ��*+���"�",�"-�.�/�0"��,!��,�,��#����	�##"�������%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����
���	����
�
�	������	�� �������������
�
�	������	�� �����������
�
�
�"""$(� ��1"�������,2�	��������-".��2����2�

 !������	�������	������	�
"�
�
�	������	�
� ����
�����#�
������
� �������������
� ����$��������
�
�
�"-$(� 3"����!!�	�����'�."����",!�	��������-".��2����2���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� �������������������
�	������	�� ���	��#	�����$�
�	������	�� �����������
�
�
�-$(� 4�.5,!!���-".��2����2��4�.5,!!���	$���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����$��������
�
�	������	�� %���$�&	
	��
�	������	�� 6,*,�*2�
�
�-"$(� 7�+��&!�2��	��8+"!!����.��
�
�	������	������
��	��
�
�
�-""$(� ���.�2."����*"��2� ����+����, ���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� �	����������
�	������	�� #�'��&	���$�
�
�-"""$(�0,!!,.�2��,2�	��������-".��2����2���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�
� �	����������
� ����(��
����
� �	��(���
	��
�

Page 25Page 25



� � ���������	�
��$� 	���'�&��������
'���'6�	��
�
�"$(� �"�8��+�,���,�8���&"#"�����"�8��+�,���,�8�����-"*�.�&"#"����

9��"��*����
�
)�����$�
�
�""$(� :&�*,!�3�-���#�����..�*",�"��%�3����,!��..�#1!2���%�%�$�

�����������	
����		��������
�
�	������	�
� ����������
�
� (�	���������
�
� *���#���������
�	������	�� �����(�����
�
�"""$(� ����+�0�.�����&�*,!����+��"�"�.��#�!�2��.;�
��,�".,�"���
�
�	������	��*������	��
�
 �����$�+��	������	������������
"�
�
�"-$(� �3
����&3����*",!�������.��3������ ��������!"�,�����+��"�"�.$�
�
������	�������	��������	������	������������
��	���	�������
�
�	������	�� (�	���� �����
� �
� ���� �����,
� �������� �	������� ��� ���� 	�����
(�	��� �����
� 	�� ������ �	�����
� ����� ����� ����	��
�� �	� ������ �
�
	�
�����
��
 �	������	������
�!��'���$��
����	�
������"�
�
�-$(� 0�.��)"�12�	+,�"�"�.� �����	�������
�������	��	�����������	�-����
���
"�
�
�	������	����#�.����	��  ���	�����������/�����������0123"�
�	������	��.�!	����  ���	�����������24�5��	����0123"�
#�������������
	��  ���	�����������31�5��	����0126"�
#�
����	���
	��  ���	�����������2-�5��	����0124"�
�	������	��(�	����$������  ���	�����������04�*�����0124"�
)�����$�  ���	�����������31�5��	����0127"�
#�
�)���	����(�8����  ���	�����������2-�*�����0127"�
#�
�(�����	��	��  ���	�����������31�������$��012/"�
�
�
�	$� 	4�&�'�������<���&=��'6�	��
�
�"$(� �"�8��+�,��">�+�<��#�	�!!����3�-���"������2�
�
�	������	������
���	����
� 2�9	��0122��	�32�5���0127"�
�
�""$(� 	���3���!�2�6	�����5#����<����
�
�	������	�
� (�	����$������
� (���$�.���
�
�
�
�

Page 26Page 26



� � ���������	�
�"""$(� &�5�����1"������*+��!�&,��.�<����,�"�����%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����$��������
�
�	������	�� �����$��	�����
�	������	�� �����(������
��
�
�"-$(� �,�"��,!��*"��2� ����+�����-���"���� �	���!�2����	+"!�����
�
�	������	��:	�$�������
�
�-$(� 
,8!,��.�	�������,�,��#����	�##"�������%�%�$�
�
�	������	�
� �������������
� :	�$�������
�	������	�� ���	��#	�����$�
�	������	�� :	��&����$�
�
�-"$(� ����"����;.����*,�"��,!����.��
�
�	������	��(���$�.���
��
�
�-""$(� ��"-��."�2�� �&"-�����!�	�������%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� *������	��
�
�	������	�� *����$'�
�
�	������	�� �����������
�
�
�-"""$(�0�.��)"�12�'�."����",!�*+��!�
�
�	������	��.���!	����
�
�">$(� 0"��,!��!����,�"-��*+��!������,##���0��$���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� :	�$�������
�	������	�� ���$��������
�
�	������	�� :	��&����$�
�
�>$(� 0"��,!��������!"�,��	�!!����3�-���"������2����#"�,�"��$�
�
�	������	��*���#���������  ���	������	��6�$����������	�2;�1/�0127"�
#�� �� *��
��	���  *

�
����� ������ .<�������"�  ���	����� �	�� 6� $���� ����� �	�
2;�20�0126"�
�
�>"$(� 0"��,!��!,2�	���*"!��>�*��"-��	�##"�������%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����
�#�����
�	������	�� ���$��������
�
�
�>""$(� 0"��,!��!,2��,�����.+"����%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����
�#�����
�	������	�� �����$��	�����
�	������	�� �����������
�
�

Page 27Page 27



� � ���������	�
�
��$� �	
�
�=�
�
�"$(� 	+�2.,!".��3����,!��,�����$�&"#"����/��"��*����
�
�	������	��*���#���������
�
�""$(� 	��.��-,�"������,���-".��2�	�##"����.�
�
�	�
������	��*���� �	������	� 
"�
�
!�	��	�	�����		�� ������9���	�'�
5<�	�� �����������
�
!���
�	�� ��������!������	���
���$� �����(�����
=���'�$� ���$��������
�
(�$�	�����&�
8���� %���$�&	
	��
:�	���	��&	���� �����$��	�����
:���
��
�	�� �����.����	��
��������	���	���9�8�!�����	�� ����(��
���������&��'������	��(���
	��
���������#�

��� �������������
�
�	������������ ������9���	�'�
�	�'����'� ����
�#�����
!�
�	�� &���$�������
.�
����� :	��&����$�
&	$��'��#�	�
������>%���?
�(��� (���$�.���
�
=����
�	��!��'���������'� ����$��������
�
��
��%���$��	����$� �����.����	��
!�	��	�	�����	����$� @������������
�
#	�����		� ������	����$��:	�$�9	����$������
�������$�
�����	�����'� !�����%���$�
�
�"""$(� &,"��."���	�##��"�"�.������+���
�
�	������	�
� ����������
�
� ����
�#�����
�
�"-$(� &"-�����!�	"�2�'��"�����,��.�
�
.����	�����������
���!	��� ������	�������	������
� �	������	������������
� �����"�
� �	������	��!�����%���$�
�
@���	����������.��������$�!	��� ������	�������	������
� �	������	������������
��
�
.���	$���������'���
�!	��� �	������	������&��'����
�
&	�
������������������������!	��� �	������	��(�	���������
�
�
�-$(� &"-�����!�	"�2�'��"���&�*,!��������".���,�����.+"��/��"��*����
�
������	�������	������+��	������	������������
�
�

Page 28Page 28



� � ���������	�
�-"$(� ���.�2��,�"�"#��3�����&�����%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� !�����%���$�
�	������	�� ��
��$��������
�	������	�� ����������
� �	A	����#�����"�
�
�-""$(� ���.�2��������!!",�*����%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����&��'����  	���	�����"�
�	������	�� �������������
�  	���	�����"�
�	������	�� �����#��������  	���	�����"�
�
�-"""$(�����+��"�8��+�,����-�!��#�������.����"��*���$�
�
�	������	��&���$�������
�
�">$(� 0"��,!� ��."��..� �,�����.+"��  :��
� �	$� �������� .����	�� &	�
��

 ������"� ��� ���������� @���
������ 9��8	�'� +� 
��� �������� ������� 23;�
 0;>22>20""�

�
������	�������	������+��	������	������������
�
����������������	�B�����������	�����.����	������+�#��%�*����$�
�
�>$(� 0"��,!�	"�"?��.;���-"*������,����%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ������������	��
�	������	�� �����.����	��
�	������	�� *����!����	�
��
���
�����������������	�B�����������	�����.����	������ #��%�*����$"� 	��
�	�����"�
�
�>"$(� 0"��,!�	���*"!� ���6�!���,�2���-"*��/��,�,��#����	�##"�����

��%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����
���	����
�
�	������	�� �����.����	��
�
�
��$� ��6�'
������������������&��=�
�
�"$(� &"-�����!��"������	��.�!�,�"-��	�##"�����
�
�	������	���	��(���
	��
�
�""$(� &3����1,��	�##".."�����%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����������
�
�	������	�� ��
��$��������
�
�"""$(� &�*,!�3�-���#�����..�*",�"���

	�,.�,!��..��.���*",!�������.��3�����
�
�	������	��&���$�������
 ��������#�������	��&���8�$
����:���
�	�����	�"�

Page 29Page 29



� � ���������	�
�
�"-$(� �,�*+�.���������4�,!�+����+��"�2�
�
�	������	���	����������
 �����$�+�9	�����	����"�
�
�-$(� ���.�2������4�,!�+�	�##"�������%�%�$�
�
�	������	�
� �	��*���$� ���������
�+��	������	�
�!������#		��$�
� �	���������� � �����
���	����
�
� &���$�������
�
�	������	�
� �	���&���� ���������
�+��	������	�
�����$��������
�
� (���$�.���
� � ����
��	8���
�
�
�	������	�� �����#�������� ���������
�+��	������	�� ��*����!����	�
��
� � � �
�-"$(� ���.�2."���0,.����".��.,!����+��"�2���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� @������������
C�
�	������	�� �������������
��
�
:���	��
�������
������������������
	���������������������
���
�� !"�
�
�
�<$� <����	��
�
�"$(� &"-�����!�	"�2�'��"���	,1"����
�
������	�������	��������	������	���������
�
�
�""$(� &�*,!���,���"*��,�����.+"���>�*��"-����,���
�
(�	��������
B� �	������	�
� ����������
�
 	���������	�����
"� � �����(�����
� � �����(������
��
�
���#��(�!����

� ������.<�������"�
�
�"""$(� �0�'��"��,!�&�,���.;���,������#"�,�"��$�
�
3������
������������	��#��
�$
���*���	�����
��=	������0123>0126�����������
$�����#�����
���	��������		�����$��%�	8
��$�������&����
��	�����
�8����
���	������
�
�"-$(� ��,���"*��,�����.+"���..�#1!2��
�
(�	��������
B� �	������	�
� ����������
�
 	���������	�����
"� � �����(�����
� � �����(������
��
�
���#��(�!����

� ������.<�������"�
�
�

Page 30Page 30



� � ���������	�
�3$� 3
6�'���	���������'
6������
�
�"$(� 0"��,!��#���-�#������,���
�
3��	��������(�	��������
�������������$�������	�������	�������
�
�""$(� 0"��,!���!�"*�!���,!�
��,�".,�"�����%�%���!�.�,�0,���	���*"!!��$�
�
�	������	�� !�����%���$�
�	������	�� @�����8�
�
�	������	�� �����#��������
�	������	�� ����������
� �����	������	�"�
�
�
�4$� 4��&�4�����0�&&����3�
�
�"$(� ���*+5�����!,2�,���	�##��"�2�	������

7�"����,�,��#����	�##"�����
�
�	������	�
� �������������
� ����
���	����
�
� *���#���������
� &���$�������
�
�""$(� 	+,�"���	��..��!,2@�=���+�,���	�##��"�2�	������

7�"����,�,��#����	�##"�����
�
�	������	�
� ����������
�
� !�����%���$�
� ����
���	����
�
� ������������	��
�
�"""$(� 	+�.+"���,���0"��,!��4��,�����.+"�����.�%�����"�����3�-������
�
�	������	����9�(������
�� *��	������	��3�$���
�������21�5��	����0123"��
�
�"-$(� 	!,����1�"����	,�*���	�������4�<����,�"������.��
 *��	������	��3�$���
����������	������������0127"�
�
�	������	������(��
����
�
�-$(� 3,��12�'�,���!,2�A�	�##��"�2�	������

7�"����,�,��#����	�##"�����
 !�
�	������������
������	������	�
"�

�
�	������	�
� �������������
� *���#���������
� &���$�������
�
�-"$(� )2!�#����	�##��"�2�	������7�"����,�,��#����	�##"�����

 ���
�$� ��� :����8���� ���� �	������	�
"� +�  ����� �	��� 	��
��� ����
�	�����,
��	���	��8������������<���������	���
"�

�
�	������	�
� ��������!������	���

Page 31Page 31



� � ���������	�
� #��'��	��
�	��
� #�'�����������
�
�-""$(� �+��&,��"�.�	������
�
�	������	��!�%���$��
�
�-"""$(�&�,.�5���!,2@�=���+�A�	�##��"�2��..�*",�"���7�"���

�,�,��#����	�##"�����
�
�	������	�
� �	��*���$�
� @�����8�
�
� *�����������
� �
�">$(� &".*,���	�##��"�2�<,*"!"�"�.�	�#�!�>�7�"����,�,��#����	�����

 ��
���� ���� �	������	�
"� A�  ����� �	��� 	��
��� ���� �	�����,
� �	���	��
8������������<���������	���
"�

�
�	������	�
� ��������	�
� ���������������
	��
� !������#		��$�
�
�>$(� &"-"��.�����������	�##��"�2�	������7�"����,�,��#����	�����

 !�
�	������������
������	������	�
"�
�
�	������	�
� �������������
� *���#���������
� &���$�������
�
�>"$(� �,2������.�@���1"������

 *��	�������
� �	� ���
� �	$� 8���� ��� 
��D���� �	� �����8� �
� ���� :��
�� �
�
��������$������8������
��	�
������	�"�

�
�	������	�
� ����$��������
�
� �����$��	�����
� �����#��������
�
�>""$(� ���.�2."���	�!���,!�<���#�
�
�	������	������
�#����� ��������#�������	��&������������������"�
�
�>"""$(���5�<���2�6"!!,���4,!!�7�"����,�,��#����	�##"�����

 !�	��	�	���� ���� �	������	�
"� +�  ����� �	��� 	��
��� ���� �	�����,
�
�	���	��8������������<��
�<��	���
"�
�

�	������	�
� �	�����
��
� ������9���	�'�
� @������������
�
�
�>"-$(�����+�0�.��&"1�,�"�.��
�
�	������	������
�#����� ��������#�������	��&������������������"�
 	���	�����"�
�

Page 32Page 32



� � ���������	�
�>-$(� '�2,!�&"-�����!��+"!+,�#��"*��*"��2�
�
�	������	������
���	����
�
�
�>-"$(��,*�#1��	�##��"�2��..�*",�"����	���*"!$�
�
�	������	�����������
�
�>-""$(� �,#�
;+,�����	���,������.��
�
�	������	�
� ����
���	����
�
� �������������
� (�	���������
�
� ������=	��'�
�
� ���	��#	�����$�
�
�>-"""$(�0�.�1������	�##��"�2�	������7�"����,�,��#����	�##"������

 ������	���	��
��������	�����,
��	���	��8������������<��
�<��	���
"�
�
�	������	�
� (���$�.���
�
� �����(�����
� �	���&����
�
�>">$(�0"��,!���"-��."�2���,*+"���4�.�"�,!�<����,�"������.��/�3�-�����.�

��%�$�
�
�	������	�������(����� "�
�	������	��@������������
� "�*��	������	��3�$���
�������24�����������0123�
�
�����$B�������	��	��*�����	������������
�
�#�����������	�
��� 
�� 
��� 
���
� �����
�������������������� 
���$��	�%�����
$�����������&��	�	�������'�����	�(�)���	

����
�
�>>$(� 0���*+��*+�	�##��"�2�	������7�"����,�,��#����	�##"�����

 E��	�������	������	�
"�+� ������	���	��
��������	�����,
��	���	��
8������������<��
�<��	���
"�
�

�	������	�
� �$�����&	�����
� �������������������
� :	�$�������
�
�
��$� 4�340�=������'���
'����
��
�
�"$(� ���.�2."���������,������,�.��������+��"�2������,�������-������2$�

��%�%�$�
�
�	������	�
� �	��*���$C�
� ������=	��'�
�
� �	����������
�	������	�� ��
��	8���
�
�
C���	��
�������
������������������
	���������
�����������������
���
�� !"�
�

Page 33Page 33



� � ���������	�
�""$(� �,�"��,!��,�8"�����B��"*,�"�����-"*��7�"���	�##"�����
�
�	������	��&���$�������
 �������
�+��	������	�
���
��$����������������#�������"�
�
�"""$(� 0"��,!�	2*!��<���#���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� ����
�����#�
������
�	������	�� ���$��������
�
�	������	�� �����(������
��
�
�"-$(� 0"��,!�����.��",��<���#���%�%�$�
�
�	������	�� &���$�������
�	������	�� %���$�&	
	��
�	������	�� �����(������
��
�
�
�7$� &�	����3@� 4��&�4� ���� �<��=� ���� 3���'�&� ��'�
��

	
��������
�
�"$(� ����+�0�.�������.+����<".+��"�.�,���	��.��-,�"������+��"�2��
�
�	������	������(��
����
�
�
�)$� ���34�
�'4

�@�4
���3�������3�3������
�
�"$(� ���*+5����A��,!!,��2���	�##��"�2�4��."����..�*",�"���9���,���
�
�	������	�
� *���#���������
� &���$�������
� ����
�������$�
�
�""$(� &�,.�5��	�##��"�2�4�#�.��,�,��#������,���
�
�	������	�
� �	��*���$�
� �	����������
� *�����������
�
*���	����&����
��(�	����	�����	��+������	��:���
�	�����	�������
	����
�
�
�"""$(� ���.�2."���<"���,���'�.*������+��"�2���%�%�$�

�����,�������-������2$�
�
�	������	�
� ����
���	����
C�
� ������9���	�'�
� ������������	��
�	������	�� ��
��$��������
� �
C���	��
�������
������������������
	���������
�����������������
���
�� !"�
�
�
�"-$(� ���.�2."�����!"*��,���	�"#���,��!�

Page 34Page 34



� � ���������	�
 .
�����
���	��00�������0120��$����$�����	���������"�
�

�	������	�
� �	���&�����
� � #	����#����������
�
�-$(� 0"��,!�	�##��"�2�, ��2��,�����.+"����%�%�$�
�
�	������	�
� (�	���������
�
� �	���&����
� *����!����	�
��
�
�-"$(� 0"��,!�	���*"!�,���'"-��."���	+,!!�����<����0��8"���3�����
�
�	������	��(�	���������
�
 ��������#�������	��9�����	���		
��&	�
�������.���������"�
#��%�*����$�
 ����������������	�B�����������	�����.����	�����"�	������$�
#����:	���
 &���	��������>�#�������������
"�	������$�
�
�-""$(� 0"��,!��,�����.+"��4�#�.�9���,���#�#1��.���%�$��
�
�	������	�
� �������������������
� ����
���	����
�
� ������=	��'�
�
�	������	�
� �����(�����
� %����$��&	
	��
�
�-"""$(�0"��,!��,�����.+"��4�#�.%�	�##��"�2�<����0��8"���3�����
�
�	������	��(�	���������
� ��������#�����"�
#��%�*����$� ����������������	�B�����������	�����.����	�����"�
#����:	��� &���	��������>�#�������������
"��
�
�
�
�

Page 35Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2013 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR PHIL DAVIES 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO LEADER 

 
CO-ORDINATING CHIEF OFFICER GRAHAM BURGESS 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the Council on 
matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 
1. BUDGET 

 
The Council will be required to find further savings following the recent 
announcement of the Government’s spending review.  Local government budgets 
will be reduced by a further 10% in 2015-16 which will force Wirral Council to 
make savings of between £13.5m and £24m during the period 2015-2018. The 
Council’s plans, agreed in March 2013, assumed the Government funding would 
reduce by 7.5%, or £12.5m. Replacing that assumption with a 10% reduction 
would result in a £16.7m fall in Government grant, and additional £4.1m. These 
further savings are in addition to the existing £109m savings that the Council has 
to deliver.   
 
At this stage the Council is unable to provide an accurate estimate for the savings 
it will be required to find for the period 2015 to 2018 as we do not currently have 
firm figures for the final two years of the spending review period.  It should be 
noted that the upper estimated figure of £24m has been identified due to the 
greater impact that budget reductions have in the past had on local authorities in 
more deprived areas which are heavily reliant on government grant.  
 
The spending review also announced that there will be a £2 billion transfer from 
the NHS to local authorities to improve adult social care and join up health 
services.  Whilst this funding will go some way to help Councils' deal with rising 
demands for social care services it will not deal with all the financial pressures 
that the Council is facing in these service areas. 
 
In April 2013 Cabinet approved the approach for developing the 2014/15 budget 
to ensure that the Council is well placed to deliver required savings, and to 
ensure that the priorities outlined within the Corporate Plan guide where future 
savings are made. The administration is working with the Council’s Chief 
Executive Strategy Group to identify budget savings options which will be subject 
to comprehensive consultation during the autumn.   
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



The Council remains on track to deliver the necessary savings identified for 
2013/14.  

 
2. CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE 
 

The Corporate Peer Challenge Team returned to the Council at the beginning of 
May 2013 to review the progress that had been made since the original visit in 
October 2012.  The team met with Elected Members, Council officers including 
front line staff and partner agencies to focus on three key areas – financial and 
risk management, organisational development and transformation and 
governance and decision making. 
 
The team concluded that the Council’s ‘improvement journey to date is clearly 
evident’ and it now feels ‘more confident and decisive about dealing with the 
challenges it faces.’ It said it believed significant headway had been made to 
identify savings and stabilise the organisation’s finances and they acknowledged 
that key governance changes were being implemented to strengthen the 
Council’s decision-making process. 
 
It highlighted the openness and transparency in the way that the Council handled 
the debt management issues that surfaced after the last Peer Challenge review 
as an example of this, stating: “Action was swift and decisive… and now looks to 
be resulting in a substantial reduction in outstanding debt.” 
 
The new Corporate Plan, the team found, set out clear organisational priorities for 
the medium term while the Peer Challenge group were also impressed by some 
of the ambitious plans and proposals emerging for the future, such as the 
development of the new Constituency Committees. 
 
Concluding the report, the peers said: “You have made enormous progress in 
addressing a very challenging set of issues.” 

 
However, it is important to recognise that the Peer Challenge Team emphasised 
that significant challenges and risks remain and there is still some way to go in 
defining a clear vision for the future supported by a transformation programme to 
get us there.  We will ensure that this is our focus for the immediate future. 

 
3. COMBINED AUTHORITY 

 
The recent spending review announced the creation of a £2 billion Single Local 
Growth Fund to be operational in April 2015 in response to the recommendations 
outlined within the Heseltine Review, which advocated an indicative single pot of 
£49bn from central budgets to be managed by local leaders.  Central government 
has outlined that access to this funding will be devolved to Local Enterprise 
Partnerships through a ‘single pot’ and will require strong governance 
arrangements to be in place at a sub-region level to manage the ‘single pot’ and 
access national funding. 
 
In response to the Heseltine Review the government has stated that appropriate 
accountability structures at local and national levels must first be in place and 
they will support local authorities that wish to create a combined authority or 

Page 38



implement other forms of collaboration, including conurbation mayors. In order to 
strengthen governance arrangements within the Liverpool City Region and 
access national funding opportunities, the member authorities have agreed to 
explore a Combined Authority model, subject to further discussions on the 
distribution of power and functions, as well as operational working arrangements. 
A Combined Authority will enable constituent local authorities to work together 
jointly to deliver improvements in economic development, regeneration and 
transport across the LCR, providing a mechanism for governing and managing 
these functions. 
 
A Combined Authority will provide greater transparency and strengthen local 
authority collaboration to promote economic growth in the LCR, as well as 
providing a more effective voice in influencing Government policy and investment 
decisions. It will ensure greater cooperation between authorities across policy 
areas and also allow Wirral to better establish its position and interests in the 
LCR. 
 
Cabinet at its meeting in July 2013 will be requested to support in principle the 
agreement by Liverpool City Region Council leaders and the Mayor of Liverpool 
to conduct a review and progress proposals to establish a Combined Authority 
across the sub-region, subject to further detailed discussions on the power and 
functions of a Combined Authority between constituent local authorities.  A more 
detailed report on the Combined Authority will be presented to a future Cabinet 
meeting outlining further details. 
 

4. WHOLE PLACE COMMUNITY BUDGET ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

At the recent LGA Annual Conference in Manchester Eric Pickles, Secretary of 
State for Communities and Local Government, announced that Wirral Council will 
be one of nine councils to pilot Whole Place Community Budget schemes. Wirral 
was the only North West council to be included in the Minister’s announcement 
and we were one of more than 40 expressions of interest. Wirral will deliver key 
programmes of work on health and social care integration and neighbourhood 
working. This initiative is part of a Transformation Network. The first four Whole 
Place Community Budget pilots will generate savings of £800m over five years. 

 
  

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2013 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE JONES 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

 
CO-ORINDATING CHIEF OFFICER GRAHAM HODKINSON, DIRECTOR 

OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the Council on 
matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 
1. NEW STRUCTURE AND IMPLEMENTATION- CHANGE IN FOCUS 
 

The management restructure was complete by the end of April.  The structure 
separates transformation, which includes commissioning and quality assurance 
functions from service delivery.  In terms of service delivery six teams are now 
aligned to two neighbourhoods; Birkenhead & Wirral South, and Wallasey & 
Wirral West. 

 
In addition, DASS have retained; a hospital team based at Arrowe Park Hospital.  
A review team managed as part of Transformation, providing arms length 
independence in its scheduled reviews, and an integrated disability service for 
people with the most complex needs. 

 
The new structure will position Adult Social Care for further integration with the 
NHS and for changes in strategic commissioning arrangements.  It provides a 
platform for developing professional standards, monitoring the care sector 
effectively and for improved customer service.  It will be accompanied by revised 
processes aimed at streamlining assessment and service provision. 

 
2. NEW COMMISSIONING STRATEGIES AND MARKET POSITION STATEMENT 

 
In my role as portfolio holder I have recently signed off a market position 
statement for adult social care, to help providers gear up for new commissioning 
requirements, “Caring for our Carers” a carers strategy for Wirral which is out for 
consultation, an early intervention and prevention commissioning plan and a 
learning disability commissioning plan.  These documents together set out how 
services delivered to people are being commissioned differently to provide more 
effective and personalised support in the context of the Council’s challenging 
budget settlement. 

 

Page 41



3. SAFEGUARDING AND QUALITY ASSURANCE UPDATE 
 
Safeguarding and quality assurance arrangements are increasingly effective 96% 
of all nursing and residential care homes had contract monitoring visits between 
April 2012 and March 2013.  98% of safeguarding referrals were actioned within 
24 hours.  Last year a total of 2769 safeguarding alerts were received.  Of these, 
850 progressed to safeguarding investigation; the others were dealt with as lower 
level care concerns. 

 
4. NHS INTEGRATION  
 

Significant progress is being made with the NHS to establish more integrated and 
cohesive services.  A long term conditions integration programme has been 
established to address increased demand from people with long terms conditions 
and complex needs. 
 
The key agreement relating to the social care fund or transfer of NHS resources 
for social care has a value of £6,443,824.  The detail of the formal Section 256 
Agreement is due to be reported to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 10 July. 

 
5. DELIVERY OF A MORE EFFECTIVE DASS 

 
In relation to savings agreed by Council in February, the Department already has 
£10.5m to deliver over the next three years with almost £6m of that in this 
financial year.  I am pleased to report that a robust transformation and project 
management framework in place and is on track to deliver all key projects. 

 
In day services for example, staffing changes have been implemented with 
phased departure of staff on EVR/VS.  Building changes are underway, the 
positive work with carers to identify a smaller venue and to take forward plans for 
a social enterprise across all of day services continue to progress.     
 

 

Page 42



 

COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2O13 
 
CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR ADRIAN JONES 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR CENTRAL AND SUPPORT 

SERVICES 
 

CO-ORDINATING CHIEF OFFICER JOE BLOTT 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the 
Council on matters relevant to his portfolio.  
 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
1. IT SHARED SERVICES 

 
Wirral IT is working with Cheshire West and Cheshire with a view to 
introducing shared services.  This will facilitate improved efficiency and 
lower costs in DASS, CYPD and Finance & HR systems. Further reports 
will follow as progress is made.   

 
2. PC REFRESH   

 
About two thirds of the 3500 or so devices currently in use are in good 
condition and can be updated; the remainder need to be replaced.  
Windows 7 will shortly replace Windows XP. Measures for the 
improvement are well under way. 

 
3. IT SECURITY 

 
IT is doing its part of the work to be ready for a major review of all the 
Council security provisions to be inspected on August 22nd 2013. A 
Security Access Group of access devices is being checked for all those 
PCs and Laptops which access critical Government information, from the 
DWP, for example. A penetration test took place last week to check the 
robustness of all our devices to resist external and internal attacks. The 
results are expected shortly and any faults will be corrected. Encryption of 
PCs and memory sticks is being completed, and advice as to our 
readiness is being sought from experts in government security 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
4. ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY 
 

Interviews took place on 26th & 27th June for 8 Apprentice posts in Parks & 
Countryside. The apprentices will be appointed on 18 month contracts 
leading to a qualification in horticulture studies. They will move around the 
service spending time in different teams to build up their experience, with a 
start date planned for beginning of July 2013.   

 
5. CHANGES TO PAYROLL REAL TIME INFORMATION (RTI) 
 

HMRC introduced the RTI process in April 2013. It is the biggest change in 
the operation of PAYE in 60 years. Wirral’s first alignment was transmitted 
successfully on 6th of June 2013. 

 
6. REDUNDANCY AND REDEPLOYMENT 

 
As a consequence primarily of the government’s funding reductions Wirral 
Council has had to make savings including £5m from management costs. 
Following negotiations with the trade unions this resulted in 196 
employees leaving voluntarily.  As of 26th June a total of 50 employees 
were issued with notice following service restructuring.  Of those, 21 are 
seeking redeployment and 17 have already been re-deployed.   

 
7. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 
 

The Council signed a Collective Agreement with the trade unions on 23 
May 2013 to change the terms and conditions of employees to save £3.7m 
per year. This is a significant change and the trade unions will be working 
closely with the Council to identify future savings and to review changes to 
working practices. 

 
BUSINESS PROCESSES 
8. WELFARE REFORM 

 
The government’s Welfare Reform programme has seen a number of 
significant changes that have impacted on our residents and ensured that 
many of our services have had to respond on the impact of these on our 
residents.  In particular the ‘Under Occupation Regulations’ (known as 
‘Bedroom Tax’) has affected well over 4,000 or our residents.  This has put 
a severe strain on the Council’s ‘discretionary housing payment fund’. A 
number of residents will also be affected by the ‘Benefit Cap’, which 
begins this month,   
 
In April the authority took over responsibility for emergency payments 
called ‘Local Welfare Assistance’. In the first two months of the scheme 
1017 claims had been received, with 594 receiving assistance by way of 
financial help for food and fuel and some claimants who had experienced 
either a crisis affecting well being to health and welfare or were 
establishing themselves into the community with virtually no personal 

Page 44



 

possessions and household items also received white goods to assist in 
relieving their difficult family circumstances. 
  

9. (A) IMPROVING COLLECTION 
 

In response to the recent report on debts by Eugene Sullivan work is 
underway on improving collection of all debts as well as addressing old 
and largely uncollectable debt. The recovery journey that used to take 70 
days has been reduced to 42 days. Discussions are ongoing with issuing 
departments to change the culture of sending invoices to obtain payment 
to now asking for payment first and then delivering the service. 

 
(B) COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME COLLECTION 

 
There are 15,700 working age claimants in receipt of Council Tax Support 
(CTS) who have to pay 22% of their Council Tax for the first time or 
substantially more than they paid in 2012-13 due directly to cuts in 
government grants. Officers have been working to ensure those claimants 
who should be in another category and protected from this reduction have 
been successful in identifying over 350 cases that qualify as vulnerable 
and do not face a cut in support of around £220 per annum. However the 
authority must look to collect from those who are due to pay.  

 
10. CALL CENTRE HELPING EXPAND FOSTER CARE RECRUITMENT 

 
In recent years the Council has had success in the area of foster carer 
recruitment. Part of this success has been based upon the use of the 
Council Call Centre in taking initial enquiries.  

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2013 
 
CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR TONY SMITH  

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 
CO-ORDINATING CHIEF OFFICER JULIA HASSALL 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the 
Council on matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 

1. A NEW FRAMEWORK FOR DELIVERING SERVICES TO 
CHILDREN, SCHOOLS AND FAMILIES 

 
The new organisational arrangements for delivering Children’s Services 
are now in place. There are three operational service areas: Universal 
Services providing core statutory functions in respect of schools, including 
traded services, admissions, transport, and 14 – 19 services, as well as 
co-ordinating partnership and commissioning arrangements; Targeted 
Services providing a new integrated approach to delivering more focussed 
early help and intervention for children, schools and families who require 
input to improve children’s life chances, and Specialist Services providing 
a more integrated approach to children with special education needs and 
disabilities alongside work with children needing social work intervention. 
Safeguarding and quality assurance is a core strand of activity running 
through all aspects of children’s services; this is being strengthened 
through the development of a Corporate Safeguarding Team to work 
across the Families and Wellbeing Directorate and the Council.  

 
The new arrangements and strategy for delivering services has informed 
the savings of £11.4m agreed by Council in March, with £6.3m on target to 
be delivered this year.  

 
2. TARGETED SERVICES- FOCUSSED EARLY HELP FOR CHILDREN 

AND FAMILIES 
 

In March a team from Wirral spoke about our new approach to providing 
Early Help at the regional launch of the North West Early Help Strategy in 
Manchester. The new service, which has been developed following a peer 
challenge by colleagues from neighbouring authorities, will provide an 
integrated 0-19 years service. The service will have three key elements: 

 

Page 47



a. Locality based community support services for children aged 0 -
19 years; 

b. A single Gateway in each Locality which will consider all 
referrals and decide the best type of intervention; 

c. Wirral wide targeted family support services, building on the 
Troubled Families Programme, which will be accessed through 
the Gateways.  

 
The new service will be fully operational by September 2013; its focus will 
be to tackle need early, resulting in better outcomes for the child and their 
family, as well as reduced cost, as fewer children need specialist 
intervention.  

 
Working alongside, and with this new service will be the new school 
improvement team, working to improve educational outcomes for all 
children, in all educational settings. This team will also have a keen focus 
on increasing children’s school readiness.       

  
 

3. SAFEGUARDING AND CHILDREN IN CARE UPDATE  
 
At the end of March 2013, there were 270 children with a child protection 
plan; this is in line with statistical neighbours. Wirral received 3,778 new 
referrals during the year, 93% of which went on to be assessed by a social 
worker, with advice and guidance being provided to 7%. Over 80% of 
assessments were completed within timescale; there were 482 child 
protection investigations resulting in 345 initial child protection 
conferences. 

 
There are high numbers of children and families being supported by social 
workers, including 669 children in care at the end of March. Of the 194 
children who left care during the year, 45 were adopted or became subject 
to a Special Guardianship Order. Actions are in place to make sure that 
more children leave care in a more timely way to live in a permanent 
family, where this is their plan.  

 
New developments include the MASH (Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub) to 
provide a new multi – agency “front door” to access services, and a new 
multiagency Child Sexual Exploitation action plan has been endorsed by 
Wirral’s Safeguarding Children’s Board; this is part of the Merseyside 
Strategy which was launched on 28 June.  

 

Page 48



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2O13 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR PAT HACKETT 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR ECONOMY 

 
CO-ORINDATING CHIEF OFFICER KEVIN ADDERLEY 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the Council on 
matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 
1. REGIONAL GROWTH FUND 

 
 The Council were successful in October 2012 in securing £5m of RGF monies to 

support the offshore wind engineering supply chain to maximize investment and 
employment opportunities for Wirral residents. Following a lengthy due diligence 
process, the programme is now live and the first grant offer has been made to a 
local engineering company. Invest Wirral has developed a pipeline of private 
sector projects for this programme and also for the Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) led RGF programme which offers general financial assistance to support 
business growth.  
 

2. ENTERPRISE ZONE 
 
 Significant progress continues on Wirral Waters Enterprise Zone. £5.5m of Local 

Infrastructure Funding has been provisionally awarded by the Government to 
remediate key sites. The International Trade Centre (ITC) site is now fully 
remediated and work is expected to start on Phase 1 in early 2014.  

 
 Work continues with government departments, including BIS and UKTI, to target 

specific sectors and businesses, particularly in maritime/ offshore engineering 
and automotive sectors and he Council has applied for ERDF funds to support 
this investment activity. 
 

3. EXTENSION TO WORKLESSNESS CONTRACT  
 
The Council is extending this contract supplied by Reachout until March 2014 to 
assist people into employment.  The investment of £504,000 will see 20 weekly 
work clubs across Wirral retained and a minimum of 408 people supported into 
employment. 
 

 
 

Page 49



 
4. HOYLAKE GOLF RESORT 
 
 This was relaunched at the British Women’s Open in September 2012 and Legal 

and Technical advisors have just been appointed by the Council to undertake a 
competitive dialogue procurement which is intended to identify a preferred 
developer by June 2014. 

 
5. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
 
 In June 2013 a series of modifications were agreed to the Core Strategy following 

consultation. 
 
 Studies to address outstanding issues related to housing numbers, gypsies and 

travellers and development viability are ongoing. The results and any further 
recommended modifications will be reported to Members when the final reports 
are available, towards the end of the year, before the Plan is submitted to the 
Secretary of State for public examination. The report on development viability will 
also advise on the ability to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy on new 
developments.  

 
6. JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL LOCAL PLAN FOR MERSEYSIDE AND HALTON 
 
 The Joint Waste Local Plan for Merseyside and Halton, which is the first Local 

Plan to be successfully produced as a result of collaborative working with the 
Councils of Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens and Sefton, is now 
recommended for adoption, following the positive report received from the 
Planning Inspector. 

 
7. BDUK – “MERSEYSIDE CONNECTED” 
 
 This project seeks to deploy broadband infrastructure in areas across Merseyside 

which lack or have poor coverage.  It is planned to appoint a supplier in August 
2013 and then to complete the project by June 2015. 

 
 
 
 

Page 50



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2013 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR BRIAN KENNY 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR ENVIRONMENT & 

SUSTAINABILITY 
CO-ORINDATING CHIEF OFFICER MARK SMITH 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the Council on 
matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 
1. SCALING BACK THE STREET CLEANSING SERVICE  
 
Changes have been made to the resources available to Biffa in association with a one 
million pound saving which comes into effect from 1st July 2013. Extensive negotiations 
with Biffa have resulted in the changes below, including amendments to certain 
frequencies of cleanse across Wirral (table 1). 
 
It has been agreed that some locations (“zone 1s” or primary retail and “gateways”) will 
remain output based. This is to say that Biffa will retain responsibility to maintain said 
locations in line with the existing contract specification. This agreement was paramount 
and has meant that existing permanent presence (or “barrow-men”) resources will 
remain in place. There will also be a designated “Gateways” team to ensure compliance 
with Wirral’s local environmental quality indicator (To maintain local environmental 
quality (LEQ) of litter, detritus, dog fouling in main gateways and shopping areas). 
 
There will be a realignment of resources inline with Wirral’s new Neighbourhood working 
approach. The Contractor will provide four teams comprising: 
 

• Driver plus one operative 
• 3.5 tonne Caged Tipper 
• 6 hours per day Monday to Friday, excluding bank holidays 

 
These teams, whilst managed, supervised and employed by the Contractor, will have 
their workload determined by the Council. This work will be specifically related to street 
cleansing services and will include, but not be limited to: 
 

• Inter-frequency cleansing 
• Clearance of fly tips, road traffic accidents etc. 
• Emergency response 
• Emptying litter bins in between frequency cleansing 

 
 

Page 51



Table 1 
Zone 

Classification 
Current 

Performance/Frequency 
Proposed 

Performance/Frequency 
Zone 1 (Primary 

Retail) 
Output based Output based 

Gateways Output based Output based 

Shopping Streets Currently Monday to 
Friday Twice Weekly 

Zones 2/3 (high to 
medium obstruction 
housing e.g. urban 
areas and terraced 

streets) 

 
 

Weekly Every 4 weeks 

Zones 3/4 (medium 
to low obstruction 

housing e.g. 
suburban housing 
estates or areas of 

rural housing) 

 
 

Every 4 weeks Every 12 weeks 

Entries Every 4 weeks Every 12 weeks 
 

 
2. GARDEN WASTE CHARGING 
 
Wirral Council’s new opt-in garden waste service has reached and surpassed its target 
for sign ups. More than 30,000 households have now signed up for the paid service 
which is now self-funding and will achieve a saving of over £1M p.a. for the Council.  
  
When people subscribe their details are entered into a database which is uploaded onto 
on-board computers in the collection vehicles. Any households not subscribing to the 
service will be able to return their bin to the Council via scheduled ‘pick-ups’ from August 
2013. 
 
Based upon the current sign up rate it is estimated that there will be 35,000 households 
signed up to the service by year 2 and Wirral joins more than 100 other Councils around 
the UK which currently charge for garden waste collections. 

Page 52



COUNCIL 
15th JULY 2013 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR ANN McLACHLAN 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR GOVERNANCE AND 

IMPROVEMENT 
CO-ORDINATING CHIEF OFFICER FIONA JOHNSTONE 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The first three months of this financial year have seen significant progress in delivering 
on our improvement agenda.  
 
1. IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 
A comprehensive progress report was considered by Cabinet on 13th June.  This 
detailed the delivery of the Plan during the first six months.  Of the 45 objectives 
set out in the original plan, more than half are either completed or on track and 
nearing completion.  We have reviewed all the milestones for the Plan to ensure 
they are realistic in the light of the significant challenges that face us. 
 
It is recognised the Improvement Plan was developed at a time when the Council 
was in a very different place than it is now.  As such it contained many of the 
basic building blocks that needed putting in place to make the organisation ready 
for more transformational change.  The Improvement Board acknowledges the 
progress made but has highlighted the need for the Council to focus on moving 
away from a list of improvement activities towards a clearer definition of the 
outcomes we are seeking to achieve, to deliver the organisation we want to be in 
the future.   
 

2. TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS 
 

In May 2013, Cabinet endorsed the development of seven key transformational 
projects which are aimed at delivering service differently and more effectively in 
the future.  The projects will be designed to find future savings to tackle the 
Council’s financial challenges but also to deliver improved and innovative 
services to our local residents. 
 
The projects that are being developed are: 
 
1. Asset Management – to effectively review the Council’s office accommodation 
and buildings within Wirral’s communities. 

2. Technical Functions – to explore the effective delivery of a range of technical 
services including environment health, trading standards and building control. 

3. Neighbourhood Working – to develop local plans that will deliver more efficient 
local service and devolve budgets through the establishment of four 
constituency committees. 

4. Transforming Business Support – to establish a single business administration 
to integrate a range of administrative functions and provide support to 
services.   

Page 53



5. Leisure Services – to ensure the Council’s leisure provision meets local 
residents needs and is financially sustainable. 

6. Strategic Commissioning – to adopt a corporate approach to commission in 
order to reduce costs and establish a robust contract monitoring 
arrangements. 

7. Transforming Children’s and Adults Services – to strengthen financial, 
performance and commissioning arrangements, focus on early intervention 
and prevention and engaging effectively with service users and partners.   

  
A governance board will be established to oversee the delivery of the 
transformational projects. 
 

3. CONSTITUTIONAL REFORM 
 
Significant work has been going on to implement the changes to the constitution 
agreed in April.  Four policy and performance committees have been established 
and inaugural meetings are being held throughout July.  Preparations have also 
been under way to establish the new constituency committees, the first meetings 
of which are scheduled for the autumn.  A programme of member training is being 
run throughout summer to support the new approaches to constituency working 
and scrutiny. 
 

4. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 2013/14 
 
§ Performance frameworks for the Corporate Plan and Directorate plans have 
been developed (e.g. KPI’s, trajectories, RAG tolerances, Accountable Officer 
responsibilities etc).  These Corporate Plans and Performance Management 
Frameworks are scheduled for discussion at the July Cabinet and July 
Council. 

 
§ Both will be performance monitored and managed on a monthly basis (and 
submitted to DMT’s and quarterly Policy and Performance Committees) 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT & BUSINESS PLANNING 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
§ A project plan to address the recommendations of Internal Audit (and the Peer 
Challenge) with regards to performance management and business planning 
processes has been developed.  

 
It will be taken to Cabinet for approval and to the Coordinating Policy and 
Performance Committee for on-going scrutiny.    
 

I will continue to work with Members on these issues and encourage them to engage 
with helping to shape and understand our future. 

Page 54



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2013 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR C. MEADEN 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR HEALTH & WELLBEING 
CO-ORDINATING CHIEF OFFICER FIONA JOHNSTONE 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the Council on 
matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 
1. CULTURAL SERVICES 

• The £1.25M refurbishment of the Williamson Art Gallery is nearing completion.  
This will enable more works of art to be displayed.  The café which is operated 
by a social enterprise is proving popular. 

• Proposals are being developed for a community asset transfer of the Tramway 
Museum to a voluntary transport organisation. 

• The Floral Pavilion has just issued its latest programme of shows and events.  
A review is being undertaken of the operation of the facility looking at future 
income opportunities and expenditure.  This will be completed in October 
2013. 

• The first phase of restructuring work has been completed to improve the 
facilities at Birkenhead Priory including the disabled access. 

• Proposals for creating business space at the building at Pacific Road are 
being explored to create employment opportunities.   

 
2. LIBRARY ONE STOP SHOPS 

• Wirral Libraries continue to provide a large range of literary and cultural events 
for Wirral.  In the past few weeks there has been successful visits by well 
known children/teen authors - Cathy Cassidy, (Book: Chocolate Box Girls) and 
Kate Maryon (Book: Invisible Girl). Early June saw over 1400 people at 
Seacombe Library on a Saturday on a Royal Birthday themed day getting new 
Library members and local interest. June also saw the launch of National 
Bookstart Week with events held to inspire our young children to take up 
reading. Under a theme of “Fairy Tales” Bebington Library hosted the launch 
with 40+ under 5’s dressed in theme listening to stories with their parents all to 
help promote reading from a very early age. The regular programme of events 
has also recently included the Schools Paperback Award, the Leasowe Mid 
Summer Reading event which we held along with colleagues of The Reader 
Organisation and the Library Summer Reading Challenge (5th July) and Books 
on Prescription (11th July Wallasey Village) where Wirral is cited as a model of 
good practice in the high profile area of health and well being. 

• At a recent Society of Chief Librarians Seminar on the future of libraries it was 
pleasing that Sue Charteris in her presentation was positive about Wirral’s 
work in innovatively developing its Library service using different models to 
reflect site size and service required. This is shown in our work at Leasowe 

Page 55



with The Reader Organisation. The next Library One Stop merged site will be 
at Rock Ferry (in August) with a more open plan approach including a 
revamped community space. This builds on our successful developments at 
Eastham, Heswall and Moreton. Encouragingly Moreton has already seen a 
sizeable increase in its Library usage since it opened as a merged site in April 
2013 and this has also seen an increase in Voluntary and Community group’s 
presence such as CAB and HealthWatch.  

 
3. LEISURE 

• The Leisure Management staff have been working closely with the team of 
Leisure Consultants – ‘V4’ commissioned to undertake a ‘Review of the 
Leisure Centres, Sports Development and Golf Courses’ currently managed 
and operated by Wirral Council. A report will be presented to Cabinet in 
September. 

• The Sports Development Unit has been commissioned by ‘Catch 22’ to deliver 
a two year National Citizen Service programme, targeting school leavers 
(16/17 year olds). The programme will consist of a home and away residential 
team building experience and the development and delivery of a social action 
community project. The two year grant was valued at £372,000. 

 
4. PUBLIC HEALTH 

• The national health checks programme has been re launched to local GPs 
with a go live date of the 1st July. Healthchecks is a mandated service for the 
Council to commission and we have decided to commission the service via 
local GP surgeries. All local people aged 40-74 without a previous diagnosis 
of heart disease will be called for an annual check every five years. The 
Healthchecks programme asks local people about their alcohol consumption 
and will help us to provide help earlier to people who are concerned about 
their alcohol consumption. 

• As part of the development of the Health and Wellbeing Board, we held a 
session on Asset Based Community Development which was well received. 
Work is now taking place to grow a number of projects in the borough to test 
this approach out and a further session is planned for the 12th September to 
develop our local approach.   

• Following my appointment as portfolio holder for public health, I have been 
undertaking a round of visits to a number of the services that the Public Health 
team commissions. I have been to visit the community programme 
commissioned from Wirral Community Trust to support people to make 
positive lifestyle choices; the drug and alcohol treatment services 
commissioned from Cheshire and Wirral Partnership Trust and a range of third 
sector organisations working with former drug users and alcoholics to support 
engage them with the recovery agenda. 

 
 
 

Page 56



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2013 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR HARRY SMITH 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR HIGHWAYS AND  

TRANSPORTATION 
 

CO-ORINDATING CHIEF OFFICER MARK SMITH 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the Council on 
matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 
1. DELIVERY OF HIGHWAY SERVICES BEYOND 2014 

 
The decision taken in March 2013 to proceed to tender for the new Highways 
Services Contract to deliver highway works and services is progressing well. The 
Council is to utilise a new form of contract which takes a well established 
construction industry form intended for term contracts which has been specifically 
adapted, as part of a Department for Transport initiative, for local authority use 
[Highways Maintenance Efficiency Programme (HMEP)]. 
 
A number of articles have appeared in the technical media relating to Wirral’s 
proposals. 
 
The first stage of tendering, pre-Qualification, is near completion, and over 30 
firms had shown some interest in the documents published by the Council. 
Officers in the Environment and Regulation Department are working with 
colleagues in HR, Finance, Legal Services and Corporate Procurement in 
development of the full tender documents. 
 
I have been invited to present Wirral’s experience in selecting and developing the 
HMEP form of contract, at a joint Local Government Association (LGA) and 
HMEP conference on 10 July 2013. 
 

2. DELIVERY OF THE STRUCTURAL MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 
 

The highway maintenance part of the Council’s Capital Programme – the 
Structural Maintenance Programme 2013/14, was approved in January 2013. 
 
Activities to carry out maintenance treatments and resurfacing schemes on both 
roads and footways across the Borough are progressing well, with over £1.1 
Million worth of work already carried out, representing approximately 33% of the 

Page 57



work planned to date. By the end of July, subject to the weather, a further £0.7 
Million worth of work will have been completed. 
 

3. LOCAL SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT FUND 2014/15 PROGRAMME  
 

Towards the end of 2013/14 the Council will seek approval from Cabinet to 
allocate funding awarded to Wirral through the 2014/15 Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund (LSTF) programme.  
 
Merseyside has been successful with two bids to the LSTF: 
 

a.      A Key Component Bid was awarded £4.877 million of grant funding from 
the Department for Transport. Wirral was awarded £810,000 over a four 
year period. 

 
b.      A further Major Scheme Bid was awarded £19.99 million of funding. Wirral 

was awarded £3.2 million over this four year project. 
 

The 2014/15 programme for the Key Component Bid has been allocated 
£100,000 of LSTF capital funding and £130,000 of LSTF revenue funding on 3 
identified programmes:  

•        Working with Employers 
•        Travel Solutions 
• Sustainable Transport.  

 
The 2014/15 programme for the Major Scheme Bid was awarded £368,030 of 
LSTF revenue and £674,830 of LSTF capital funding. This will be allocated to the 
following programmes: 

•        Walking and cycling, Visitor Economy 
•        Business Travel Support 
• Community Travel Hub, Maxi taxi; and Network Improvements 

 
 

Page 58



COUNCIL 
 
15th JULY 2O13 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIO SUMMARY REPORT 
 
REPORT OF COUNCILLOR GEORGE DAVIES 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS, HOUSING AND 

ENGAGEMENT 
 

CO-ORINDATING CHIEF OFFICER EMMA DEGG 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder to Members of the Council on 
matters relevant to his/her portfolio.  
 
1. CONSTITUENCY COMMITTEES AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR 

NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING 
 
Following a report to Cabinet on 23 May 2013, 4 Constituency Managers have 
been internally recruited who will enable Constituency Committees to take a 
leadership role in influencing and shaping services. They will ensure that citizen 
engagement and empowerment is transformed and continuously improved. A 
Neighbourhood Engagement Officer will also be located in each constituency. 
 
Elected Members completed a survey in April 2013 providing feedback on the 
proposed operating model of neighbourhood arrangements, and have also taken 
part in consultation workshops in the last few to define how the 4 Constituency 
Committees will operate and how community representatives will be selected. 
 
A Strategic Director will take responsibility for each constituency area and will 
provide the senior officer link between the Constituency Committees and the 
strategic and operational delivery of coterminous services.  
 
£200,000 in total has been allocated to the 4 Constituency Committees, which will 
develop Constituency Plans and commission activities accordingly. 

 
2. DISCHARGE OF HOMELESSNESS DUTY INTO PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR 
 
 Cabinet on 13 June 2013 approved a policy to discharge a homeless duty into the 

Private Rented Sector after consultation with related stakeholders, in line with the 
provisions of the Localism Act and in response to pressures on the social rented 
stock in Wirral. Ensuring that the standards of property and management by 
private landlords is maintained and improved, that conditions are reasonable and 
landlords are fit and proper people remain key challenges. 

 
 The duty must be met with an offer of an assured short-hold tenancy in privately 

rented accommodation with a minimum fixed period of one year. 
 

Page 59



3. THE IMPLICATIONS OF BENEFIT REFORMS AND UNDER-OCCUPATION 
 
 The Economy & Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee produced a 

report on the effects of Welfare Reforms on the under-occupation of rented 
accommodation in Wirral’s social and private rented sectors, based on interviews 
with a wide range of providers, agencies and stakeholders in January 2013. It 
contains 18 key recommendations for tenants, social housing providers, private 
landlords, the Council, its services and partner organisations and their clients. 
While work is already underway across the housing sector to address these 
implications, Cabinet has asked officers to draw up an Action Plan to address the 
recommendations and provide on-going monitoring. 

 
4. HOUSING RESEARCH PROJECTS 
 

Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 
Wirral is in the process of commissioning a new SHMA that will objectively assess 
the needs for market and affordable housing. The information obtained from the 
SHMA will be used to enable the Council to update and inform its Housing 
Strategy, strategic priorities and provide an evidence base for the Core Strategy, 
which will reset the housing requirement for Wirral to 2030. Consultants should be 
appointed by July 2013. The SHMA should be fully completed by January 2014. 
 
Private Sector Stock Condition Survey (PSSCS) 
A PSSCS is undertaken every five years to help measure the impact of Wirral’s 
housing improvement programs e.g. Warmer Wirral, housing clearance and 
renewal, aids and adaptations and Wirral Healthy Homes. It will also inform the 
Housing Strategy and strategic priorities. Wirral PSSCS has been jointly procured 
with Sefton Council and is being undertaken by David Adamson Partners. The 
survey is due for completion by August 2013. 

 
5. AFFORDABLE HOUSING NEW PROVISION 
 
 322 new affordable homes must be delivered in the Borough in 2013/14, based 

on actual completions throughout the year where funding to deliver these units 
has been secured through a range of programmes. Over £29 million of 
investment will be made by Registered Providers (Housing Associations). 

 
 Since January 2013 nine new housing development schemes have started. 

These include 10 units on the Great Easter Pub site in New Ferry and a further 31 
units across two Council owned sites at Esher Housing and Poulton House. 26 
affordable new housing units have been completed since April 2013 including 21 
units at Town Meadow Lane in Moreton. In May 2013 a development of 21 new 
two bed apartments was opened in Bidston Road, Claughton by Regenda 
Housing Association. 

 
6. COSYHOMES FREE INSULATION SCHEME 
 
 In operation 2011-2013, a total of 25,772 measures have been installed into 

houses as part of the scheme, resulting in a CO2 saving of 356, 341 tonnes. 
 
 
 

Page 60



7. HANDYPERSON SCHEME 
 
 Council agreed to reduce the size of the Handyperson Team as a budget saving. 
 Two members of the team affected have since set up their own gardening service 

with advice and support from officers and through the gifting of equipment and the 
sale of vehicles to them by the Council. 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET – 13 JUNE 2013  
 

7 POLICY ON DISCHARGE OF STATUTORY HOMELESSNESS DUTY INTO THE 
PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR  
 
Councillor George Davies introduced a report by the Strategic Director of 
Regeneration and Environment who sought approval for the adoption of a policy to 
discharge a homeless duty into the private rented sector. 
 
The Cabinet was informed that the Localism Act 2011 included significant changes 
to the way in which local authorities could deal with applications for social housing 
and homelessness applications under Parts 6 and 7 of the Housing Act 1996.  Local 
authorities owed applicants who were homeless, eligible for assistance, in priority 
need and not intentionally homeless, the main housing duty to secure suitable 
accommodation (unless a referral to another local authority could be made under the 
local connection provisions). 
 
From 9 November 2012, the Localism Act had allowed local authorities to fully 
discharge the local housing duty by a ‘private rented sector offer’.  This must be an 
offer of an assured short-hold tenancy in private rented accommodation with a 
minimum fixed term period of one year.  The property attached to the offer had to be 
in a reasonable physical condition and the landlord had to be a fit and proper person.   
 
If the Council intended to use this power it had to develop a clear policy around its 
use.  A draft policy that set out how the Council intended to discharge a homeless 
duty into the Private Rented Sector was attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the Cabinet recommends that the Council adopts a policy to Discharge a 
Homeless Duty into the Private Rented Sector.   
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET MEMBER DECISION – ECONOMY – 18 JUNE 2013  
 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK - JOINT WASTE LOCAL PLAN FOR 
MERSEYSIDE AND HALTON 
 
The report of the Strategic Director: Regeneration and Environment advises that the 
Joint Waste Local Plan for Merseyside and Halton was submitted to the Secretary of 
State for public examination by a Planning Inspector in February 2012. The 
Inspector’s Report to the Joint Merseyside and Halton Councils recommended that 
the Joint Waste Local Plan can now be formally adopted subject to modifications that 
were made subject to public consultation in November 2012. This report therefore 
recommends that the Joint Waste Local Plan is now formally adopted by a resolution 
of Full Council to replace the policies previously contained within Section 17 – Waste 
Management of the Unitary Development Plan for Wirral adopted in February 2000. 
 
Resolved – 
  
(1)  That it be recommended to the Council that the Joint Waste Local Plan for 
Merseyside and Halton, which was submitted to the Secretary of State for 
public examination in February 2012, is formally adopted as part of the 
statutory Development Plan for Wirral subject to the modifications published 
for public consultation in November 2012. 
  
(2)  That the Council’s resolution to adopt the Joint Waste Local Plan, as 
modified, will come into effect one working day after the final full Council 
resolution of each of the six partner councils has been passed. 
  
(3)  That following the date the Council’s resolution comes into effect, the Head 
of Service for Regeneration is authorised, alongside the other partner 
councils, to publish and make the final version of the modified Joint Waste 
Local Plan available for public inspection and to issue the necessary notices 
and notifications in accordance with the requirements of national regulations 
and the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (December 2006). 
  
(4)  That when publishing the final version of the modified Joint Waste Local 
Plan, the Head of Service for Regeneration is given delegated authority to 
approve any presentational or minor typographical changes that will not 
materially alter the content, meaning or effect of the modified Local Plan, 
including the addition of a foreword to be signed by representatives of each of 
the partner councils. 
  
(5)  That the monitoring and implementation of the Joint Waste Local Plan is 
undertaken alongside the Council’s partners as part of the existing contract 
with the Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service. 
  
(6)  That the report be referred to Planning Committee for information. 
 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

CABINET MEETING 

11TH JULY 2013 
 

SUBJECT: CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE  
MANAGEMENT REPORT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 
REPORT OF: FIONA JOHNSTONE (DIRECTOR OF 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND HEAD OF POLICY  
& PERFORMANCE) 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

CLLR ANN MCLACHLAN (GOVERNANCE 
AND IMPROVEMENT) 

KEY DECISION?  NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The aim of this report (Appendix 1) is to outline the proposed performance 
management report to support the delivery of the Corporate Plan for 2013/14. 

 
1.2 It translates the priorities set out in the Corporate Plan into a coherent set of 

performance outcome measures and targets. They will be used to evaluate the 
achievement of strategic priorities over the next year of the plan. 

 
1.3 It is anticipated that the development of the Corporate Plan will be an iterative 

process during 2013/14 based on the feedback and requirements of elected 
members and portfolio leads. It will run in parallel to the wider development of 
the underpinning business planning and performance management 
infrastructure within the council (e.g. Performance Management Framework 
Policy, electronic provision of performance information to elected members, 
transition from targets to outcomes). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 As part of the second phase of the development of the Corporate Plan, a set of 
SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Time related) 
outcome measures have been developed with each of the three Strategic 
Directorates and the Corporate function (Neighbourhoods & Engagement and 
Public Health, Policy & Performance). 

 
2.2 A series of business planning sessions were organised with each Strategic 

Directorate designed to convert the objectives outlined in the Corporate Plan 
into a set of strategic outcome measures aligned to organisational resources, 
systems and employees. 

 
2.3 To ensure alignment of outcome measures to organisational resources, 

systems and employees the planning sessions were comprised of a multi-
disciplinary team of corporate support services (e.g. HR, Risk, Finance, Policy 
and Performance & Business Intelligence). 

 
2.4 Strategic Directors determined the outcome indicators contained within the 

performance report and agreed (and signed off) the following parameters 
(developed by their teams) which underpin their on-going performance 
management: 

 Page 67



• 2013/14 Plan 
• 2013/14 Plan trajectory (see Appendix 2) 
• 2013/14 Performance tolerance levels (determine RAG [Red, Amber,  
 Green] status 
• Head of Service responsible for delivery of target 

2.5 Corporate Plan performance will be monitored on a monthly basis against the 
parameters agreed as part of the business planning process (e.g. RAG 
tolerance levels). A number of indicators are only available on a quarterly 
basis, in line with the availability of data.  

  
2.6 The outputs from this monitoring process will be performance managed 

proactively on an exception basis. The system is designed to promote a “no 
surprises” approach to performance management.  

 
2.7 Heads of Service responsible for the delivery of targets must complete an 

exception report and delivery plan for all indicators which are under 
performing (e.g. red RAG rated indicators). Appendix 2 illustrates the pro-
forma which will be used to capture this information.  

 
2.8 Monthly Corporate Plan performance reports will be produced and made 

available (to support corporate challenge) in line to support: 
 

• Monthly DMTs 
• Monthly Portfolio Lead briefings 
• Quarterly Audit, Risk, Governance and Performance meetings 
• Quarterly Policy and Performance Committees 
 

2.9 The corporate plan will be underpinned by a hierarchy of metrics captured in 
Directorate, Service and Team plans. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The performance management framework is aligned to the risk management 
strategy. At present no risks are identified in relation to the latest version of the 
Corporate Plan performance report. 

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 N/A 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Corporate plan drafted based on the feedback generated by the What Really 
Matters public consultation. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 N/A 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 Financial implications of undertaking the actions to deliver the Corporate Plan 
will be addressed by departments as appropriate. Financial approval of the 
contents of this report will be sought following the initial review at CESG. 

 
Page 68



8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 Legal implications of undertaking the actions to deliver the Corporate Plan will 
be addressed by departments as appropriate. Legal approval of the contents of 
this report will be sought following the initial review at CESG. 

 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The Corporate Plan has a clear focus on supporting those who are 
disadvantaged, including the delivery of specific services and through ensuring 
that all of Wirral’s diverse communities are equally able to access services.  

 
9.2 Equalities implications relating to the actions set out in the Corporate Plan will 

be addressed by departments as appropriate, and details set out in individual 
departmental plans. This work is also monitored by the Corporate Equalities 
and Cohesion Group and the Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 N/A 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 N/A 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 Cabinet are requested to indicate their agreement with the proposed 
dashboard, and to refer this proposal to Council for approval. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 To ensure that the report provides elected members with the information 
required to evaluate the delivery of the three strategic priorities identified by the 
Corporate Plan. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Tony Kinsella 
  Head of Performance 
  Telephone:  07717156941 
  Email:   tonykinsella@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – Corporate Plan Performance Report (2013/14)  
Appendix 2 – Corporate Plan Performance Report (2013/14) Technical Specification 
Appendix 3 – Exception/Delivery Plan Template 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

N/A 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 
Cabinet and Council meetings (agreement of the 
Corporate Plan)   

February 2013 

 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

No. Description Data Source Performance 
2012/13

Target/Plan  
2013/14

YTD Target 
2013/14

YTD Performance Monthly Trend Reporting Period Accountable Officer
 (Head of Service)

Comments

1 Rate of Children Looked After (per 10,000 population 0 – 17) SSDA 903 Return 100.1 95.7 99.7 98.9 Apr - May S Garner (Acting)

2 Rate of Children in Need (per 10,000 population 0 – 17)
Children in Need 

Census
415.5 396.8 420.3 435.6 Apr - May S Garner (Acting)

3 Preventative Services – Qualitative Measure (Placeholder) S Pimblett

4 Safeguarding: % of Safeguarding Referrals actioned within 24hrs SWIFT 98.2% 100% 100% 97.9% May J Evans

5
Permanent admissions of older people (aged 65 and over) to residential and 
nursing care homes, per 100,000 population

Office for National 
Statistics (ONS)

909 695 835 816 May C Beyga
2012/13 performance previously a forecast outturn (835).  Performance now 
ratified and updated.

6
Number of interventions put in place for travel plans and transport (to improve 
accessibility to employment & opportunities)

Travel Solutions 868 1,000 142 334 Apr - May M Smith

7
To maintain local environmental quality (LEQ) of litter, detritus, & dog fouling in 
main gateways and shopping areas

Local Survey Data 92% 92%
90% actual 

(90% 
cumulative)

NYA  -  M Smith
Quarterly measure.

8 Number of new affordable homes

Housing Strategy 
Team (Homes & 

Communities Agency 
MIS)

202 
(forecast outturn)

322 40 NYA  -  I Platt

Quarterly measure.

9
Number of empty properties returned to use or demolished through local authority 
action

M3 Northgate 
Database

250
(forecast outturn)

255 10 NYA  -  I Platt
Quarterly measure. 

10 Number of interventions to improve private rented sector properties MVM Database New Indicator 400 100 NYA  -  I Platt
Quarterly measure.

11 Number of adaptions completed MVM Database 1,523 1,860 465 NYA  -  I Platt
Quarterly measure.

12 Jobs created and safeguarded (via Invest Wirral) Invest Wirral 1,580 925 110 173 Apr - May D Ball

13 Apprenticeships supported (Wirral Apprentice Programme)
Hanlon Information 

System
New Indicator 50 TBC NYA - D Ball

The Wirral Apprentice Programme is still under development.  It is anticipated that 
it will be completed and agreed between July and August 2013.  Initial programme 
results are expected by September 2013.

14 Number of working age people claiming out-of-work benefits (economic in-activity) NOMISWEB 16.1% 15.6% 15.8% NYA - D Ball
This is a 6-monthly measure.  Performance data will be available in August 2013. 

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Corporate Plan Performance Report as at 31st May 2013

DOMAIN 1:  FAMILIES AND WELLBEING

Children and Young People Department

A qualitative outcome metric to evaluate the impact of redesigning Family Support Services (as a result of a Peer Review by the 
Children's Improvement Board) on the experience of families is currently being developed (during Q2).  It will examine the experience of 

users and staff. 

Department of Adult Social Services 

DOMAIN 2:  REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Environment & Regulation

Housing & Community Safety

Regeneration

-

+

+

-

-

-

1

P
age 71



Appendix 1

No. Description Data Source Performance 
2012/13

Target/Plan  
2013/14

YTD Target 
2013/14

YTD Performance Monthly Trend Reporting Period Accountable Officer
 (Head of Service)

Comments

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Corporate Plan Performance Report as at 31st May 2013

15 Chargeable Services (% achievement versus best practice) KPMG Annual Study TBC
Upper Middle 

Quartile
(Feb 2014)

- - - P Timmins

Following a report presented to the Chief Executive Strategic Group (5/06/2013), it 
was agreed;
- to trial Trading Accounts in a central service;
- to implement Trading Accounts for Legal Refresh (the recharge system), and
- to commission an external company to recommend appropriate recharge 
system.  

16 Adult Care Packages supported by Direct Debit (as a %)
Accounts Payable 

Ledger
NIL 30% 0% 0% May P Timmins

Department on target to have the system available by the end of September 2013, 
to support the introduction of direct debit payments from October 2013.

17 Establishment reduction compared to savings assumption Establishment List N/A 100% - - - P Timmins

The process of aligning finance salary budgets and Human Resource 
establishment records has commenced (first meeting on 11/06/2013).  
Performance will be measured from July 2013.

18 Budget savings achieved General Ledger N/A
£48.4m 
(100%)

£9.90m £9.90m Apr P Timmins
April savings are in line with forecast.  May savings will be available following the 
Chief Executive Strategic Group meeting on 18/06/2013.

19 Agency/Consultancy costs General Ledger £2,000,000 £1,500,000 £166,667 NYA - C Hyams
Human Resource are currently developing a process that will enable them to 
provide this data accurately on a timely monthly basis.

20
Sickness absence: The number of working days/shifts lost due to sickness 
absence

M44 Form 10.50 days 10.50 days 0.73days 0.75days Apr C Hyams

April is a provisional figure as data is still being collated.  Perfomance data for May 
will be available around 20th June 2013. 

The sickness level overall has improved from March 2013, when it was 0.81days.

21 Alcohol-related admissions to hospital
Secondary User 
Service (SUS)

2,486.9 2,355.2 2355.2 2283.5 Apr J Webster
2012/13 performance previously a forecast outturn (2,296.50).  

22 Smoking quitters (4 weeks) Stop Smoking Service
2,738

(forecast outturn)
3,500 204 NYA - J Webster

By the nature of this indicator, the results are always 4 weeks behind and the 
reporting of the data is a further 4 weeks behind (8 weeks in total) because the 
interventions are carried out in the community, and the paperwork is sent to the 
Stop Smoking Service to input onto database.  The provider is in the process of 
working with both intermediates and pharmacy to implement outcome based/real-
time reporting systems.  

23
Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular diseases (including heart disease 
and stroke)

Office for National 
Statistics (ONS)

68.7 64.0 68.0 NYA - J Webster
Awaiting access to mortality files to be able to report this measure.  This is a 
national problem that is currently being resolved.

24 Constituency plans in place for 2014/15 - - Mar 2014 Mar 2014 - - E Degg
Annual measure.

25 Partial devolution of services to be delivered at constituency level - - Sep 2013 - E Degg
6-monthly measure -performance data will be available in September 2013. 

26 Full devolution of services to be delivered at constituency level - - Mar 2014 - E Degg
Annual measure.

27 Local Government Equality Framework: To be an 'excellent council' - -
Amber

(Mar 2014)
Mar 2014 - - E Degg

Annual measure.

Subject to agreement.

Subject to agreement.

DOMAIN 3:  TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES

Resources

Human Resources

DOMAIN 4:  CORPORATE

Public Health, Policy & Performance

Neighbourhoods & Engagement

+

+

2

P
age 72



Appendix 2

Frequency Performance 
2012/13

Target 
2013/14

Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14

Corporate Plan Performance Report: Technical Specification Part 1

Indicator

1 Rate of Children Looked After (per 10,000 
population 0 – 17)

Monthly 100.1 95.7 100 99.7 99.2 96.6 96.1 95.798.8 98.3 97.9 97.5 95.7

418.5 417.9 415.7 413.2 410.4 407.4 403.7 396.8

97

3 Preventative Services – Qualitative Measure 
(Placeholder)

Monthly New Indicator TBC Qualitative Indicator to be determined

2 Rate of Children in Need (per 10,000 population 
0 – 17)

Monthly 415.5 396.8 420.8 420.3 419.7 419.1

4 Safeguarding: % of Safeguarding Referrals 
actioned within 24hrs

Monthly 98.2% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

5 Permanent admissions of older people (aged 65 
and over) to residential and nursing care homes, 
per 100,000 population

Monthly 909 695 835 817 799 780 758 743 732 724 718 710 703 695

6 Number of interventions put in place for travel 
plans and transport (to improve accessibility to 
employment & opportunities)

Monthly 868 1,000 65 142 205 265 318 403 545 652 703 795 897 1,000

220 322

7 To maintain local environmental quality (LEQ) of 
litter, detritus, & dog fouling in main gateways 
and shopping areas

Quarterly 92% 92% 
(cumulative)

90% actual (90% cumulative) 88% actual (89% cumulative) 94% actual (90.1% cumulative) 96% actual (92% cumulative)

30 40

8 Number of new affordable homes Quarterly 202 322 40 117

60 80 100 120 160 200 240 255

200 30010 Number of interventions to improve private 
rented sector properties

Quarterly New Indicator 400

9 Number of empty properties returned to use or 
demolished through local authority action

Quarterly 250 255 10 20

400 100

11 Number of adaptions completed (and average 
cost of adaptions for year)

Quarterly 1,523 1,860 465 930 1860

20 110 23112 Jobs created and safeguarded (via Invest 
Wirral)

Quarterly 1,580

1395

748 836351 462 562 639 925

13 Apprenticeships supported (Wirral Apprentice 
Programme)

Monthly New Indicator 50 TBC

296 693925

14 Number of working age people claiming out-of-
work benefits (economic in-activity)

6-monthly 16.1% 15.6% 15.8% 15.6%

15 Chargeable Services (% achievement versus 
best practice)

Monthly TBC Upper Middle 
Quartile

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Upper Middle 
Quartile

Upper Middle 
Quartile

16 Adult Care Packages supported by Direct Debit 
(as a %)

Monthly NIL 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 20% 25% 25% 30% 30%

3

P
age 73



Appendix 2

Frequency Performance 
2012/13

Target 
2013/14

Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14

Corporate Plan Performance Report: Technical Specification Part 1

Indicator

17 Establishment reduction compared to savings 
assumption

Monthly N/A 100% N/A N/A N/A 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

18 Budget savings achieved Monthly N/A £48.40m £9.90m £14.90m £16.70m £18.60m £20.60m £23.60m £26.60m £29.90m £33.20m £36.50m £39.80m £48.40m

19 Agency/Consultancy costs Monthly £2,000,000 £1,500,000 £166,667 £333,333 £500,000 £666,667 £833,333 £1,000,000 £1,100,000 £1,200,000 £1,300,000 £1,366,667 £1,433,333 £1,500,000

20 Sickness absence Monthly 10.50days 10.50days 0.73days 1.78days 2.58days 3.37days 4.01days 4.75days 5.74days 6.82days 7.70days 8.75days 9.68days 10.50days

21 Alcohol-related admissions to hospital Monthly 2486.9 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2 2,355.2

22 Smoking quitters (4 weeks) Monthly 2,738
(forecast outturn)

3,500 204 416 608 761 891 1,051 1,261 1,420 1,549 1,818 1,995 3,500

23 Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular 
diseases (including heart disease and stroke)

Monthly 68.7 64.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 67.0 67.0 66.0 66.0 66.0 65.0 65.0 64.0 64.0

24 Constituency plans in place for 2013/14 Monthly - Mar 2014

25 Partial devolution of services to be delivered at 
constituency level

Monthly - Sep 2013

Mar 2014

Mar 2014

Sep 2013

27 Local Government Equality Framework: To be 
an 'excellent council'

Monthly - Amber
(Mar 2014)

26 Full devolution of services to be delivered at 
constituency level

Monthly - Mar 2014

Mar 2014

4

P
age 74



Appendix 3 

PERFORMANCE ACTION PLAN TEMPLATE 
This template is to be completed for ALL measures showing RED status of non-
compliance against the specified target reported. 

 
INDICATOR OVERVIEW 

Indicator Title 
 

Rate of Children in Need (per 10,000 population 0 – 17) 

Strategic Director Lead 
 

C FISH 

Departmental Lead 
 

S Garner 

Target 
 

407.7 

 
CURRENT SITUATION:  Detail what the performance is for this measure and reason/s for 
non-compliance 
Performance this Period 
 
 

428.2 + / - Target : +5.05%  
(Tolerance RED=+2.5%) 

Non-compliance reason 
 
 

 

 
ACTIONS:  This describes what’s necessary or how to achieve a ‘green’ score. This way 
everyone is clear on what is required and when; knows the expected outcome and 
how to achieve it . 
What (is required) 
 
 
 

 

How (will it be achieved) 
 
 
 

Are there any resource allocation required for specific 
activities? 

Who (will be responsible) 
 
 
 

 

When (will results be 
realised) 
 
 
 
 

Date required. 

 
 
 
 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
STRONG LEADER REPORT 
 
 
SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF THE COUNCIL’S SECTION 151 

OFFICER 
WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 
REPORT OF: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

KEY DECISION?  NO 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to recommend to Council the appointment of Jim Molloy, 

Interim Senior Manager, as the Council’s statutory Section 151 Officer, with effect 
from 27 July 2013 until the appointment of a permanent Director of Resources.  

 
2. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
2.1 On 15 October 2012, Council appointed Peter Timmins as Interim Director of Finance 

and Section 151 Officer.  
 
2.2 Peter Timmins last day of employment with the Council will be 26 July 2013. The 

Council is therefore required under the Local Government Act 1972 to appoint a 
Section 151 Officer. 

 
2.3 The Section 151 Officer responsibility is part of the job description for the Director of 

Resources. The recruitment process is underway for this role, with an appointment 
expected to be made on 2 August 2013. 

 
2.4 Jim Molloy, is currently Interim Senior Manager within the Resources Section of the 

Finance Department of the Council and has the necessary qualifications and 
experience to undertake the role and responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer. 

 
3. ROLE OF SECTION 151 OFFICER 
 
3.1. Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and requires one 
officer to be nominated to take responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  

 
3.2. The Section 151 Officer must be a qualified accountant belonging to one of the 

recognised chartered accountancy bodies. The Section 151 Officer has a number of 
statutory duties, including the duty to report any unlawful financial activity involving the 
authority (past, present or proposed) or failure to set or keep to a balanced budget. 
The Section 151 Officer also has a number of statutory powers in order to allow this 
role to be carried out, such as the right to insist that the local authority makes sufficient 
financial provision for the cost of internal audit. 

 
4. RELEVANT RISKS  
 
4.1  The Council will be at risk if it does not appoint a Section 151 Officer. 
  

Page 79



5. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
5.1 The proposed appointment set out in this report is considered to be the most 

appropriate option for the Council, given the legal requirement for the Council to have 
a Section 151 Officer. 

 
5.2 The Section 151 Officer responsibility is part of the job description for the Director of 

Resources. The recruitment process is underway for this role, with an appointment 
expected to be made on 2 August 2013.   

 
6. CONSULTATION  
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 
7. IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
7.1 None 

 
8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  
 
8.1 There are no additional resource, IT, asset, staffing or financial implications.  
 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1 The Council has a legal requirement to appoint an officer to take responsibility for the 

administration of its financial affairs pursuant to Section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972.     

 
10. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no equality implications. 
 
11. CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  
 
11.1 Not applicable for this report. 

 
12. PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 Not applicable for this report. 
 
13. RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1 That Council be recommended to agree the appointment Jim Molloy as the Council’s 

statutory Section 151 Officer with effect from 27 July 2013 until the appointment of a 
permanent Director of Resources.  

 
14. REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
14.1 The Council has a legal requirement to have a Section 151 Officer. Peter Timmins, 

Interim Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer is leaving the Council on 26 July 
2013. If approved, Jim Molloy, Interim Senior Manager, will be appointed as Section 
151 Officer until the appointment of a permanent Director of Resources.  

 
 
 Page 80



REPORT AUTHOR: Surjit Tour 
  Head of Legal and Member Services 
  telephone:  (0151) 691  
  email:   surjittour@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES   
 
There are no appendices to the report. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 
None 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
Council Meeting  
 

Date 

Council  
 
Cabinet 

15 October 2012 
 
18 September 2012 

 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



MATTERS FOR NOTING 
 
Cabinet – 13 June 2013  
 

17. FINANCIAL MONITORING 2013/14  
 
Councillor Phil Davies introduced a report by the Interim Director of Resources that 
detailed the Monitoring Position for Month 1 (ended 30 April 2013). Attached to the 
report were separate appendices for Revenue and Capital. 
 
Councillor Phil Davies reported that it was essential to have a very robust monitoring 
process in place to ensure that the Council delivered its savings. Throughout the 
financial year the Cabinet would receive monthly updates in respect of Revenue and 
Capital Monitoring and this was the first report for the 2013/14 financial year. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
Revenue 
 
(1) the monitoring position of a balanced position for revenue be noted and 

that this position is after funding of a Redundancy Reserve of up to £5.5 
million; 

 
Capital 
 
(2) the monitoring position for capital be noted; and 
 
(3) the revised capital programme as detailed in the capital monitoring 

appendix be agreed.  
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Council – 15 July 2013 
 
Motions 
 
The following motions have been submitted in accordance with the notice required 
by Standing Order 7(1) and are listed in the order received.  
 
 
1. WHISTLE-BLOWING 
 
Proposed by Councillor Jeff Green 
Seconded by Councillor Lesley Rennie 
 
(1) Council notes that on the 19 June 2013 the CQC published an independent 

report into its registration and oversight of University Hospitals Morecambe Bay 
NHS Foundation Trust where up to 16 baby deaths and 2 maternal deaths 
could be attributed to poor quality of care. A significant part of this report 
focussed on the ‘11 questions’ raised by Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
whistle-blower Kay Sheldon. 

 
(2) Mrs. Sheldon, a non-executive Board Member of the CQC, had previously 

given evidence to the Francis Inquiry concerning high mortality rates at Mid 
Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust. Within her evidence Kay Sheldon states 
that the final straw for her to contact the inquiry was that she had been trying to 
raise concerns for quite sometime and the Chair of the CQC had been trying to 
undermine Mrs. Sheldon by suggesting she was mentally unstable. 

 
(3) Council further notes the recent publication from the National Audit Office 

“Confidentiality clause and special severance payments” where the Head of the 
Audit Office stated “it is important that compromise agreements do not leave 
staff feeling gagged or reward failure either of an employee or an organisation.”  

 
(4) Council believes that Martin Morton would be able to draw parallels between 

Mrs. Sheldon’s experiences at the CQC and his own experiences at Wirral 
Borough Council where he blew the whistle on Wirral Borough Council that led 
to the ordering of the AKA investigation and subsequent report which found that 
the abnormal had become the norm. 

 
(5) Martin has received no justice – his life has been ruined and both the AKA 

report and Martin Smith reports vindicated him. Let us not forget that Martin 
stood up for those vulnerable adults who couldn’t stand up for themselves and 
was hounded out of his job for doing so. Council is therefore extremely 
dissatisfied that, over two years on from the publication of the Martin Smith and 
AKA reports, the Administration have been unable to find an acceptable 
resolution with Martin Morton.  

 
(6) Council is further disappointed to note that, along with the public, it has never 

received an adequate explanation into the sequence of events that allowed two 
senior members of staff implicated in the Martin Morton whistle-blow to leave, 
under compromise agreements, less than 1 working day prior to the publication 

Agenda Item 11

Page 85



of the AKA report and exactly what role the then leadership of the Council had 
in that decision. 

 
(7) Council therefore requests the Chief Executive to:  
 

(a) brief the three party leaders about the current state of discussions with 
Martin Morton and produce a timeline for resolution; 

 
(b) conduct a review of all the circumstances surrounding the decision to 

allow two senior members of staff implicated in the Martin Morton whistle-
blow to leave, under compromise agreements and present that review to 
the three party leaders at the September Leaders’ Board prior to full 
publication. 

 
 
2. LOCAL INVESTMENT IN RAIL - HIGH SPEED2 & BORDERLANDS 

RAILWAY 
  
 Proposed by Councillor Stuart Kelly 

Seconded by Councillor Alan Brighouse 
  
(1) Council welcomes the Government’s announcement on the High Speed Rail 

network, (HS2), and notes that high speed trains will leave from Wirral’s 
nearest intercity terminal at Liverpool travelling to London via Crewe in 1hr 36m 
and believes this will be of great benefit to the regional economy. 

 
(2) Council further welcomes the investment in overhead electrification of the line 

from Liverpool to Manchester. The project is expected to be completed, ahead 
of schedule, in 2014, enabling Liverpool to Manchester journey times to be 
reduced from 47m to 30m. 

 
(3) However, Council believes more can be done to improve rail performance and 

infrastructure in the region and calls on the appropriate authorities to: 
  

• Ensure that the track and services between Liverpool and Crewe meet the 
region’s needs and aspirations; 

 
• Re-consider the proposal for phased improvements to the Borderlines 

railway, with new stations at Beechwood and Prenton, which would 
potentially open up new employment opportunities for Wirral residents in 
North Wales; 

 
• Examine options that would increase train speeds and frequencies into 

Chester. 
  
(4) Council asks that the appropriate Cabinet member makes the terms of this 

Motion known to the Liverpool City Region Transport Body, Merseyside 
Integrated Transport Authority, and the City Region Local Enterprise 
Partnership for their information and support. 

 

Page 86



Recommendation to the Mayor – it is suggested that this Motion be referred to 
Cabinet to enable an Executive response to the issues to be raised with the 
Bodies mentioned in the body of the Motion in accordance with SO7(4). 
 
 

3. COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW ANNOUNCEMENT – 27TH JUNE 
2013 

 
Proposed by Councillor Phil Davies 
Seconded by Councillor Ann McLachlan 
 
(1) Council notes that the Government's efforts to deal with the deficit so far have 

focussed on cutting public spending. Since 2010, 1,500 fire fighters have lost 
their jobs; over 300 libraries and 400 Sure Start centres have closed; police 
numbers have been reduced by over 6,000 and there are 5,000 fewer nurses. 
The rise in people relying on food banks is a clear sign that many are facing 
high levels of economic and social distress.  

 
(2) There is a strong case that local authorities should be encouraged to invest in 

growth. Local government is demonstrating its ability to drive growth by 
providing infrastructure investment and supporting local businesses. Allowing 
local government to borrow in line with prudential rules will enable us to invest 
in building houses and create desperately needed jobs. 

 
(3) Councils have been handed some of the deepest cuts in the public sector. 

Local authorities have seen their budgets cut by 33% in comparison to 8% 
across Whitehall departments.  

 
(4) The additional 10 per cent reduction announced by the Chancellor in the 

Comprehensive Spending Review on the 27th June confirms local government 
as the hardest hit part of the public sector and, according to Cllr Sir Merrick 
Cockell, Chairman of the Local Government Association, will ‘stretch essential 
services such as culture and leisure facilities, school support, road 
maintenance and growth to breaking point in many areas’. 

 
(5) This additional cut will equate to Wirral Council having to make savings of 

between £13.5m and £24m during the period 2015 to 2018. This is on top of 
the £109m savings the Council has to make between 2012 and 2015. 

 
(6) At a time of increased unemployment, Council believes that the nation's safety 

net has been seriously compromised. The bedroom tax, council tax benefit 
reductions and other cuts will mean that many people will struggle to keep their 
heads above water. 

 
(7) Council believes that the government should be supporting those who are 

being hit hardest by the economic downturn. Scrapping the bedroom tax and 
looking again at the costs to families of all the benefit changes should be a 
priority before giving tax cuts to the richest people in the country. 

 
 

Page 87



4. CUTS TO MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 
 
Proposed by Councillor Denise Roberts 
Seconded by Councillor Jean Stapleton 
 
(1) Wirral Council recognises the excellent work undertaken by Merseyside Fire 

and Rescue Service and applauds the commitment of its frontline and support 
staff. This Council also notes that those individuals’ ability to protect the people 
of Wirral is being jeopardised by the Government cuts to funding as well as 
undermining staff morale. 

 
(2) This Council is deeply concerned by the findings of the Ken Knight review of 

fire and rescue services which makes the case for further huge cuts, mergers 
with other Authorities or Police Crime Commissioners and most worryingly 
privatisation. The Ken Knight review gives very little recognition of the very 
difficult decisions taken by Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority to date in 
managing the deepest cuts inflicted on any Authority in the Country and instead 
advocates its replacement by a PCC without any evidence whatsoever to prove 
that this would improve the service delivered to the residents of this city region. 

 
(3) This Council notes with serious concern the Government’s alarming proposals 

to privatise part if not all functions of the fire and rescue service, along with yet 
further cuts to their grant funding which will impact on their ability in protecting 
residents from fire, road traffic collisions and other emergencies within the 
Borough of Wirral. 

 
(4) This Council is deeply worried that the Government has lost sight of the fire 

service’s main purpose, to protect residents from fire, road traffic collisions and 
other emergencies and their devastating impact on our communities and that it 
threatens to put private profit ahead of the need to save lives and help people 
feel safe in their homes and community. 

 
(5) This Council further notes that the Government’s proposals are in the context of 

a programme of ill-conceived efficiencies to fire and rescue services. The 
impact this will have on the communities of Merseyside is extremely worrying 
and places vulnerable residents in danger. 

 
(6) This Council also notes due to Government cuts which has seen Merseyside 

Fire and Rescue Service suffer cuts totalling £19.2m over the 4 year spending 
review with 180 firefighters posts deleted and a reduction in Fire engines from 
42 to 28 by 2015. 

 
(7) The Government’s proposal for further huge cuts in 2015 will have devastating 

effects on operational response and the community safety and prevention work 
delivered by the Authority to such an excellent standard. 

 
(8) This Council therefore calls on the Government, in particular the Secretary of 

State for Local Government and the Chancellor’s department to cease their ill 
conceived and irresponsible cuts to our fire and rescue services and pledge 

Page 88



instead to protect the public from further risk of fire by protecting this front line 
emergency service from further cuts and threats of privatisation. 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	6 LEADER'S, EXECUTIVE MEMBERS' AND CHAIRS' REPORTS
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Adult Social Care
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Central and Support Services
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Children's Services
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Economy
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Environment and Sustainability
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Governance and Improvement
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Health and Wellbeing
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Highways and Transportation
	Cabinet Portfolio Summary- Neighbourhoods Housing and Engagement

	7 MATTERS REQUIRING APPROVAL BY THE COUNCIL
	Cab Member Decision Econ
	Corporate Plan Performance Management Report - 11/07/2013 Cabinet
	Appendices 1 and 2, 11/07/2013 Cabinet
	Appendix 3, 11/07/2013 Cabinet
	Appointment of Section 151 Officer - Decision Form
	Appointment of Section 151 Officer - Report

	8 MATTERS FOR NOTING
	11 NOTICES OF MOTION

